
BOARD OF EDUCATION 
City Hall - 45 Lyon Terrace 

Bridgeport, Connecticut 06604 
 

 
 

͞Changing FƵƚƵƌeƐ and Achieǀing Eǆcellence Togeƚheƌ͟ 

 

 

Bridgeport, Connecticut             September 1, 2020  

 

Board Members: 

A meeting of the Governance Committee of the Board of Education will be held at Bridgeport 
Regional Aquaculture Science & Technology Education Center, 60 St. Stephens Road, Bridgeport, 
Connecticut, 06605 on Thursday, September 3, 2020, commencing at 6:00 p.m.   

Due to social distancing protocols, members of the public will not be allowed in the meeting space, 
but will be able to view the meeting through live stream on https://www.bridgeportedu.net/stream. 

Agenda 

1. Approval of Minutes –  August 17, 2020 
2. Discussion and Possible Action on Section 504 of Policy #5158 
3. Discussion and Possible Action on Control Transfer Policy #5116a  

 
 
 

           
Bobbi Brown 

Secretary 
Board of Education  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Governance Committee Members: 
Hernan Illingworth (Chair)  
Jessica Martinez 
John R. Weldon 
Michael J. Testani (Staff)   

 

MICHAEL J. TESTANI 
Superintendent of Schools 

 
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 

 
JOHN R. WELDON 

Chairman 
 

 HERNAN ILLINGWORTH 
Vice-Chairman 

 
BOBBI BROWN 

Secretary 
 

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD cont. 
 
 

SYBIL ALLEN 
 

ALBERT BENEJAN 
 

JOSEPH J. LOMBARD 
 

JESSICA MARTINEZ 
 

JOSEPH SOKOLOVIC 
 

CHRIS TAYLOR 
 
 
 
 
  

 



 1 

Monday, August 17, 2020 
 
 
MINUTES OF THE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE OF 
THE BRIDGEPORT BOARD OF EDUCATION, held 
August 17, at Bridgeport Regional Vocational 
Aquaculture School and by video call, at Bridgeport, 
Connecticut. 
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:03 p.m.  
 
Committee members present were Chair Hernan 
Illingworth and John Weldon. Board member Joseph 
Sokolovic was present. Board member Albert Benejan 
arrived subsequently as noted. 
 
Superintendent Michael J. Testani was present.   
 
Mr. Weldon moved approval of the minutes of the 
meeting of June 1, 2020. The motion was seconded 
by Mr. Illingworth and unanimously approved. 
 
The next agenda item was on Policy 5140, which 
covers school uniforms. Mr. Illingworth said there had 
been some concerns about the policy, especially on 
the high school level. He said as a parent leader he 
spearheaded the effort with the board to create this 
policy. He said there were thousands of parent 
surveys that were done before the current policy was 
put in effect in 2012. 
 



 2 

Mr. Illingworth said the policy has been successful at 
the K to 8 level, but it does need to be monitored and 
enforced. 
 
Mr. Benejan arrived at the meeting. 
 
Supt. Testani said the document distributed was put 
together with the high school principals in conjunction 
with Dr. Victor Black, the executive director of 
secondary education. He said the principals were 
present because they support revisiting the uniform 
policy. He added that the uniform policy is successful 
at the K-8 level. He said he supported giving high 
school students choices and added suburban districts 
do not require everyone to dress the same. He said 
challenges to the policy by students force the 
administration to spend time away from teaching and 
learning and enforcing what kids are wearing. He said 
the requirement of students to wear masks would also 
complicate the issue. 
 
The superintendent said it was not proposed to 
change the uniform requirement at BMA or the lab 
coats used at Fairchild Wheeler.  He said he would 
support making wearing shoes, not sandals or flip-
flops, mandatory. 
 
In response to a question, Supt. Testani said he was 
looking to pilot a new policy for a year and then the 
pluses and minuses could be considered for needed 
further tweaks. An official policy change could be 



 3 

considered later in the school year. 
 
In response to a question, Beth Furnari, principal of 
the IT School at Fairchild Wheeler, said she used 
other high school policies as a basis for the draft. 
 
Mr. Sokolovic said the change would save parents 
who are out of work the expense of having to 
purchase the uniforms. He said defining offensive 
logos could be difficult. He noted that young people 
develop phrases and language that are not easy to 
determine the meaning of. 
 
Supt. Testani suggested prohibiting clothing 
displaying logos, labels and phrases suggesting sex, 
alcohol or drugs, and profanity.  He suggested 
allowing political statements due to free speech.  
 
Mr. Sokolovic suggested referring to closed footwear 
and limiting the size of heels. 
 
Mr. Benejan said he believed the uniform policy was 
working well, but principals had to work harder to 
enforce the policies. He said he preferred uniforms 
because it made things easier for himself as a single 
dad. He said the school colors on shirts made it 
easier for security to identify students who did not 
belong in another school. He said parents needed to 
be informed that the uniforms are mandatory. 
 
Mr. Illingworth said he understood enforcement was 



 4 

difficult, but there is lot to be said in favor of uniforms.  
He said Bridgeport was a unique district with a lot of 
challenges such as gang-related colors. He said he 
was hesitant to suspend the policy, but would let the 
full board decide. He said he knew from his daughter 
that Mr. Graf at Central enforced the uniform policy, 
even though it was not easy. He said in the past 
children were being bullied because of the sneakers 
or the clothing they were wearing. He said the board 
could streamline the policy to make it easier to 
enforce. 
 
Mr. Weldon said he sees both sides, but simply 
suspending the uniform policy and trying a dress code 
in its place would be a test.  He noted the challenges 
of enforcing the policy at the high school level and he 
was not sure the dress code would be easier to 
enforce than the uniform policy. 
 
Supt. Testani said Mr. Graf, who was unable to 
attend, expressed his support for revising the uniform 
policy.   
 
The superintendent said his office had received a lot 
of calls from parents indicating they can’t afford 
financially to buy new uniforms. He noted children at 
these ages grow quickly. He said if students are sent 
home for not wearing uniforms, they lose a day of 
instruction. He said when parents are called about 
students not wearing uniforms, they often respond 
they told the child to wear the uniform and then went 



 5 

to work. He asked  the committee to hear from the 
principals in attendance. 
 
Ms. Furnari said although there would be a dress 
code, it would be more relaxed than the uniform 
policy. She said teaching students appropriate attire 
was valuable as well. She said her students would be 
surprised to learn that the policies were not enforced 
at Fairchild Wheeler in the past and discipline data 
would support this. She said she had received calls 
from parents about financial hardships concerning 
buying uniforms.   
 
Mr. Sokolovic said he would not support additional 
discipline which would result from enforcing the 
uniform policy.  
 
In response to a question, Ms. Furnari said wearing 
the lab coats is a rule at Fairchild Wheeler. She said 
students have opportunities to take them off during 
the day. She said she believed the lab coats offer a 
measure of distinction to the school.  
 
Dane Brown, principal of Harding, said last year there 
was an emphasis on chronic absenteeism and it was 
learned the lack of uniforms was a barrier to coming 
to school at times. Dr. Joseph Raiola, principal of 
Bassick, said he was in favor of the draft. He said the 
current policy has always been tough to enforce and 
sometimes takes time away from instruction.    
 



 6 

Mr. Benejan said the uniform policy is enforced at 
BMA and he wondered why the other schools can’t do 
the same.   
 
Dr, Black said he supported both sides of the 
conversation. He noted BMA prepares students as 
first responders, jobs which tend to require a uniform.  
He said the negativity that often results first thing in 
the morning from the uniform policy can interfere with 
the education of the student. He said he believed the 
lab coat was appropriate at Fairchild Wheeler. 
 
Supt. Testani said when the uniform policy was 
created there was clothing worn associated with gang 
activity. He said he believed the current gang activity 
has become more discrete and is less likely to draw 
attention with clothing. He noted the DiNardo family 
donated uniforms for some of the elementary grades. 
 
Mr. Sokolovic said he was not opposed to a separate 
policy for magnet schools. 
 
Mr. Illingworth said he would like to see a 
professional-style dress code. He said he supported 
hitting the reset button and bringing everyone around 
the table, including students, to develop a policy. 
 
Mr. Benejan said he agreed the students needs to be 
at the table.  
 
Me. Weldon moved “to recommend to the full board 



 7 

that the district suspend Policy 5140 as it relates to 
secondary school students, with the exception of BMA 
and the lab coat requirement of Fairchild Wheeler.”  
The motion was seconded by Mr. Illingworth and 
unanimously approved. 
 
Mr. Weldon moved to adjourn the meeting.  Mr. 
Illingworth seconded the motion. The motion was 
unanimously approved. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:50 p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
John McLeod 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

Bridgeport Public Schools 
Policies and Procedures 

 
Elementary & Secondary 

 
CIVIL & LEGAL RIGHTS & 

RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
Policy Regarding Section 

504 Of The Rehabilitation 

Act Of 1973 

 
 
 

Policy No.5158 

 
4/23/12 

 
Page 1 of 9 

 

 

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 ("Section 504") is an Act that prohibits discrimination against 

persons with a disability in any program receiving Federal financial assistance.  For the purposes of Section 504, 

the term "disability" with respect to an individual means: 

 
1. a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities of such 

individual; 

  
2. a record of such an impairment; or 

 
3. being regarded as having such an impairment. 

 
 

Section 504 provides that, “No otherwise qualified individual with a disability in the United States... shall 

solely by reason of her or his disability, be excluded from the participation in, be denied the benefits of, 

or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance....” 

 

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (“Section 504”) is a federal law designed to protect the rights of 

people with disabilities in programs and activities that receive federal funds from the U.S. Department of 

Education. The Office for Civil Rights (“OCR”), a sub-agency of the U.S. Department of Education, is responsible 

for protecting the civil rights of students in federally assisted education programs and prohibiting 

discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, disability, age, or membership in patriotic youth 

organizations. 

 

In the setting of a public school, Section 504 applies to the employment of persons with disabilities, access to 

programs and services offered by the District to persons with disabilities, and the provision of a free 

appropriate public education to students with disabilities who attend the Bridgeport Public Schools. The 

regulations implementing Section 504 have a series of requirements for each group of people who are 

protected by Section 504. 

 

In order to fulfill its obligation under Section 504, the Bridgeport Public Schools recognize a responsibility to avoid 

discrimination in policies and practices regarding its personnel, students, parents and members of the public who 

participate in school sponsored programs. In this regard, the Bridgeport Public Schools will not knowingly permit 

discrimination against any person with a disability in any of the programs operated by the school system. Persons 

who feel that they may have been discriminated against on the basis of disability should contact the Bridgeport 

Public School's Section 504 Coordinator. 

 
The school district also has specific responsibilities under Section 504 with respect to providing access to 

appropriate educational services for students who qualify under Section 504. These responsibilities include the 

obligation to identify, to evaluate, and to afford access to appropriate educational services. If the parent or 

guardian disagrees with the decisions made by the professional staff of the school district with respect to the 

identification, evaluation, or educational placement of their child, he/she has a right to an impartial hearing. 

Additional written information about an impartial hearing is available on request from the Section 504 Coordinator. 

 

 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Body Text, Indent: Left:  0.08", First line: 

0.01", Right:  0.22", Line spacing:  Multiple 1.04 li

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Body Text, Indent: Left:  0.08", First line: 

0.01", Right:  0.22", Line spacing:  Multiple 1.04 li

Formatted: Body Text, Indent: Left:  0.08", First line: 

0.01", Right:  0.22", Line spacing:  Multiple 1.04 li



 
Please contact John Di DonatoCarli Rocha-Reaes, the Section 504 Coordinator for the Bridgeport Public 

Schools, at phone number 203-275-128795 with any addit ional questions or concerns about this policy. 

 

 

At any time, a complainant has the right to file a formal complaint with: 

Office of Civil Rights 

U.S. Department of Education 

5 Post Office Square 

8 

8th Floor, Suite 900 

Boston, MA 02109-3921 

(617) 289-0111—telephone 

(617) 289-0150 — fax 

(877) 521-2172 — TDD 

  

http://www2.ed. gov/about/offices/list/ocr/complaintintro.html 

  

Questions regarding services for students who may be disabled under the provisions of Section 504 may be 

directed to the school where the child/student attends, where the Guidance Counselor is the Principal’s 

designee to oversee Section 504 procedures and act as the Section 504 Coordinator for the building. 

 

Questions for adults with disabilities working for the District or utilizing the buildings programs of the 

Bridgeport Public Schools may be directed to: Ms. Denise Altro-Dixon, Executive Director of Human Resources. 

Phone Number: (203) 275-1355; email: daltrodixon@bridgeportedu.net. 
 

Legal References:29 U.S.C. § 794 

34 C.F.R. § 104 et seq. 

42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq. 

ADA Amendments of 2008, Public Law 110-325 

 
Protecting Students with Disabilities, Frequently Asked Questions About Section 504 and the Education of 

Children with Disabilities, Office for Civil Rights (March 27, 2009), available at 

http://www.ed .gov/about/off ices/list/ocr/504faq.html https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/504faq.html 

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Body Text, Centered, Indent: Left:  0.08",

First line:  0", Right:  0.22", Line spacing:  Multiple 1.05 li

Formatted: Body Text, Indent: Left:  0.08", First line:  0",

Right:  0.22", Line spacing:  Multiple 1.05 li

http://www2.ed/
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/504faq.html


Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 158 Page 2 of 9 

 
Bridgeport Board of Education Section 504 Complaint Procedures 

 
Section 504 prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability.  For the purposes of Section 504, the term "disability'' 

with respect to an individual means: (a) a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major 

life activities of such individual; (b) a record of such an impairment; or (c) being regarded as having such an 

impairment.  "Major life activities" include, but are not limited to, caring for oneself, performing manual tasks, 

seeing, hearing, eating, sleeping, walking, standing, lifting, bending, speaking, breathing, learning, reading, 

concentrating, thinking, communicating and working.   A major life activity also includes the operation of a major 

bodily function, including, but not limited to, functions of the immune system, normal cell growth, digestive, bowel, 

bladder, neurological, brain, respiratory, circulatory, endocrine and reproductive functions.  

 

Procedural Safeguards Under Section 504 

 

Parents and guardians are afforded procedural safeguards under Section 504. Appendix A contains the 

statement of parental rights, which includes, among other rights, the right of the parent/guardian to be 

informed of their rights under Section 504; the right for the student to have equal opportunities to participate 

in academic, nonacademic, and extracurricular activities in the school; and the right to be notified about 

referral, evaluation, and programs for the student. The District is also required to provide public notice of its 

policies of nondiscrimination, grievance procedures for Section 504 complaints, and the contact information 

for the District coordinator of Section 504 compliance. This information is contained in Part A and Part C of 

this Section 504 Manual. 

 

Complaint Resolution Procedures For Complaints Involving A Student’s Identification, Evaluation, 

and/or Educational Placement 

 

Complaints regarding a student’s identification, evaluation, and/or educational placement shall generally be 

handled using the procedures described below. 

 

However, at any time, the complainant may request that the Section 504 Coordinator submit the 

complaint directly to an impartial hearing officer, and request a hearing in accordance with the 

provisions of subsection D (below). 

 

 

 

The District 504 Coordinator is: 

  

Ms. Carli Rocha-Reaes, Coordinator of School Counseling 

  

Bridgeport Public Schools 

45 Lyon Terrace, Rm. #330 

Bridgeport, CT 06604 

Phone: 203-275-1287 

Fax: 203-337-0153 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A. Submission of Complaint to Section 504 Coordinator 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Body Text, Indent: Left:  0.07", First line:  0",

Right:  0.13", Line spacing:  Multiple 1.05 li

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Body Text, Indent: Left:  0.07", First line:  0",

Right:  0.13", Line spacing:  Multiple 1.05 li

Formatted: Body Text, Indent: Left:  0.07", First line:  0",

Right:  0.13", Line spacing:  Multiple 1.05 li

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Body Text, Indent: Left:  0.07", First line:  0",

Right:  0.13", Line spacing:  Multiple 1.05 li

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Body Text, Centered, Indent: Left:  0.07",

First line:  0", Right:  0.13", Line spacing:  Multiple 1.05 li



a. In order to facilitate the prompt investigation of complaints, any complaint regarding a 
student’s identification, evaluation and/or educational placement under Section 504 should be 
forwarded to the district’s Section 504 Coordinator within thirty (30) school days of the alleged 
date that the dispute regarding the student’s identification, evaluation and/or education 
placement arose. Timely reporting of complaints facilitates the resolution of potential 
educational disputes. 
 

B. The complaint concerning a student’s identification, evaluation and/or educational placement should 

contain the following information: 
a. Full name of the student, age, and grade level; 

b. Name of parent(s); 
c. Address and relevant contact information for parent/complainant; 

d. Date of complaint; 
e. Specific areas of disagreement relating to the student’s identification, evaluation and/or 

placement; and 
f. Remedy requested. 
 

However, all complaints will be investigated to the extent possible even if such information is not included 
in the complaint. In such circumstances, additional information may be requested by the investigator as 

part of the investigation process. 

 
C. Complaints will be investigated promptly within timeframes identified below. Timeframes may be 

extended as needed given the complexity of the investigation, availability of individuals with relevant 
information and other extenuating circumstances. 

 

D. Upon receipt of the complaint, the Section 504 Coordinator shall: 
a.  Forward a copy of the complaint to the Superintendent of Schools; 

b. Meet with the complainant within ten (10) school days to discuss the nature of his/her 
concerns and determine if an appropriate resolution can be reached. If a complaint is made 
during summer recess, the complaint will be reviewed and addressed as quickly as possible 
given the availability of staff and other individuals who may have information relevant to the 
complaint; 
c. If, following such a meeting, further investigation is deemed necessary, the Section 504 
Coordinator shall promptly investigate the factual basis for the complaint, consulting with any 
individuals reasonably believed to have relevant information, including the student and/or 
complainant; and 
d. Communicate the results of his/her investigation in writing to the complainant and any persons 
named as parties to the complaint (to the extent permitted by state and federal confidentiality 
requirements) within fifteen (15) school days from the date the complaint was received by the 
Section 504 Coordinator. 
e. In the event that the person making the complaint contends that the Section 504 Coordinator 
has a conflict of interest that prevents him/her from serving in this role, the complaint shall be 
forwarded to the Superintendent who shall appoint an investigator who does not have a 
conflict of interest. 
 

1. Review by Superintendent of Schools 

a. If the complainant is not satisfied with the findings and/or resolution offered as a result of the 
Section 504 Coordinator’s review, he or she may present the complaint and the written 
statement of findings to the Superintendent for review and reconsideration within thirty (30) 
calendar days of receiving the findings. This process provides an opportunity for complainants 
to bring information to the Superintendent’s attention that would change the outcome of the 
investigation. In submitting the complaint and written outcome for review, the complainant 
must explain why he/she believes the factual information was incomplete, the analysis of the 
facts was incorrect, and/or the appropriate legal standard was not applied, and how this would 
change the investigator’s determination in the case. Failure to do so may result in the denial of 
the review. 

  
2. The Superintendent shall review the complaint and any relevant documents maintained by the Section 
504 Coordinator/investigator and shall consult with the Section 504 Coordinator/investigator regarding 
attempts to resolve the complaint. The Superintendent also shall consult with the complainant. The 

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.5"



Superintendent may attempt to resolve the complainant’s concerns alone, or with another appropriate 
Administrator. 
 

3. Following the Superintendent’s review, he or she shall communicate his/her findings to the 
complainant within ten (10) school days following his/her receipt of the written request for review. 
 
4. If the complainant is not satisfied with the Superintendent’s decision or proposed resolution, he/she 
may request that the Superintendent submit the matter to a neutral mediator or to an impartial 
hearing officer. This request for a hearing/mediation should be made within fifteen (15) school days of 
the Superintendent’s decision. Mediation shall only occur by mutual agreement of the parties. 

 
I. Procedures for Complaints Alleging Discrimination on the Basis of Disability 

 

A. It is the express policy of the Board of Education to provide for the prompt and equitable resolution of 

complaints alleging any violation of Section 504.  In order to facilitate the timely resolution of such 

complaints, any eligible person, including any student , parent/guardian, staff member or other 

employee who feels that he/she has been discriminated against on the basis of disability should submit 

a written complaint to the district's designated Section 504 Coordinator within thirty (30) 

days of the alleged occurrence. Timely reporting of complaints facilitates the investigation and 

resolution of such complaints. Complaints regarding a student's rights with respect to his/her 

identification, evaluation, or educational placement shall be addressed in accordance with the 

procedures set forth below in Section 11. 

 
B. If the Section 504 Coordinator is the subject of the complaint, the complaint should be submitted 

directly to the Superintendent, who shall investigate or appoint a designee to do so. 

 
 Complaints will be investigated promptly and corrective action will be taken when allegations are 

verified. Confidentiality will be maintained by all persons involved in the investigation to the extent 

possible. 

 
C. The written complaint should contain the following information: 

 
0. The name of the complainant; 

0. The date of the complaint; 

0. The date(s) of the alleged discrimination; 

0. The names of any witness( es) or individuals relevant the complaint; and 

0. A detailed statement describing the circumstances in which the alleged discrimination 

occurred. 



Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 158 Page 3 of 9 

 
D. Upon receipt of the written complaint, the Section 504 Coordinator (or Superintendent, as 

outlined above), shall: 
 

0. Provide a copy of the written complaint to the Superintendent of Schools; 
 

0. Meet with the complainant to discuss the nature of the complaint; 
 

0. Provide the complainant with a copy of the Board's Section 504 Policy and 
applicable administrative regulations; 

 

0. Investigate the factual basis for the complaint, including interviews with individuals 
with information relevant to the complaint; 

 
0. Attempt to resolve the complainant's concerns, whenever possible; 

 

0. Maintain confidentiality to the extent practicable throughout the investigative process, 
in accordance with state and federal law; 

 

0. Communicate the findings of the investigation to the complainant, along with 
intended remedial actions, whenever appropriate, while keeping in mind 
confidentiality obligations; and 

 
0. Ensure that appropriate remedial and/or disciplinary action is taken whenever 

allegations are verified. 
 

D. If, following the investigation by the Section 504 Coordinator, the complainant is not satisfied with  
the results of the investigation or the proposed resolution, the complainant may request, in writing, 
that the Superintendent review the findings of the Section 504 Coordinator. Upon receipt of a  
written request from the complainant, the Superintendent shall review the investigative results of 
the Section 504 Coordinator and determine if further action and/or investigation is warranted. 

 

I. Complaint Resolution Procedures for Complaints Involving a Student's Identification, Evaluation, 
and/or Educational  Placement 

 
Complaints regarding a student's identification, evaluation, or educational placement shall generally 

be handled using the procedures described below, However, at any time, the complainant may 

request that the Section 504 Coordinator submit the complaint directly to an impartial hearing 
officer, and request a hearing in accordance with the provisions of subsection D (below).



Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 158 Page 4 of 9 
 
 

 
B. Submission of Complaint to Section 504 Coordinator 

 
4. In order to facilitate the prompt investigation of complaints, any complaint regarding a 

student's identification, evaluation or educational placement under Section 504 should 
be forwarded to the district's Section 504 Coordinator within thirty (30) days of the 
alleged date that the dispute regarding the student's identification, evaluation or 
education placement arose. Timely reporting of complaints facilitates the resolution of 
potential educational disputes as it assists the district in gathering current, accurate 
information and enables the district to take corrective actions when necessary to 
ensure that a student is provided with an appropriate educational program. 

 
4. The written complaint concerning a student's identification, evaluation or 

educational placement should contain the following information: 
 

 . Full name of the student, age, and grade level; 
 . Name of parent(s); 
 . Address and relevant contact information for parent/complainant; 
 . Date of complaint; 
 . Specific areas of disagreement relating to the student's identification, 

evaluation or placement; and 
 . Remedy requested. 

 

4. Upon receipt of the written complaint, the Section 504 Coordinator shall: 
 

 
 . Forward a copy of the complaint to the Superintendent of Schools; 

 

 
 . Meet with the complainant within ten ( 10) business days to discuss the 

nature of his/her concerns and determine if an appropriate resolution can be 
reached; 

 

 
 . If, following such a meeting, further investigation is deemed necessary, the 

Section 504 Coordinator shall promptly investigate the factual basis for the 
complaint, consulting with any individuals reasonably believed to have 
relevant information, including the student and/or complainant ; and 

 

 
 . Communicate the results of his/her investigation to the complainant 

within fifteen (15) business days from the date upon which the complaint 
was received by the Section 504 Coordinator. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 



Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 158Page 5 of 9 
 
 

 
B. Review by Superintendent of Schools 

 
4. If the complainant is not satisfied with the findings and/or resolution offered as a result of 

the Section 504 Coordinator's review, he or she may present the written complaint to the 
Superintendent for his/her review. 

 

4. The Superintendent shall review the complaint and any relevant documents maintained 
by the Section 504 Coordinator and shall consult with the Section 504 Coordinator 
regarding attempts to resolve the complaint. The Superintendent shall also consult with 
the complainant. The Superintendent may attempt to resolve the complainant's 
concerns alone, or with another appropriate administrator. 

 

4. Following the Superintendent's review, he or she shall communicate his/her findings 
to the complainant within ten (10) business days following his/her receipt of the 
written request for review by the Superintendent. 

 

4. If the complainant is not satisfied with the Superintendent's 
decision or proposed resolution, he/she may request that the Superintendent submit the 
matter to a mediator or to an impartial hearing officer. This request for a 
hearing/mediation should be made within fifteen (15) days of the Superintendent 's 
decision. Mediation shall only occur by mutual agreement of the parties. 

 

B.A. Mediation  Procedures: 
 

1. The mediator must be someone who is knowledgeable about Section 504 and the 
differences between Section 504 and the regulations and requirements of the 
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA). 

 
2. The mediator shall inform all parties involved of the date, time and place of the 

mediation and of the right to have legal counsel or other representation at the 
complainant's own expense, if desired. 

 

3. The mediator shall meet with the parties jointly , or separately, as determined by the 
mediator, and shall facilitate a voluntary settlement of the dispute between the parties, 
if possible. 

 

4. If the parties are not able to reach a voluntary settlement of the dispute, the 
complainant may request an impartial hearing, as described below. 



Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 158 Page 6 of 9 
 

Mediation Procedures: 
 
A parent or guardian may request mediation with a neutral mediator to attempt to resolve a 
disagreement 
with the decisions made by the professional staff of the school district with respect to the identification, 
evaluation, and/or educational placement of his/her child. 
 

1. A request for mediation regarding a student’s identification, evaluation and/ or 
educational placement under Section 504 should be forwarded to the district’s Section 
504 Coordinator within thirty (30) school days of the alleged date that the dispute 
regarding the student’s identification, evaluation, and/or education placement arose. 

  
2. The request for mediation concerning a disagreement relating to a student’s 

identification, evaluation and/or educational placement should contain the following 
information: 

a. Full name of the student, age, and grade level; 
b. Name of parent(s); 
c. Address and relevant contact information for parent/complainant; 
d. Date of complaint; 
e. Specific areas of disagreement relating to the student’s identification, evaluation 

and/or placement; and 
f. Remedy requested. 

  
3. Upon receipt of a request for mediation, the Section 504 Coordinator shall: 

• Forward a copy of the request for mediation to the Superintendent of Schools; 
• Retain a neutral mediator who is knowledgeable about the requirements of 

Section 504, and has an understanding of a free appropriate public education 
(“FAPE”) under Section 504, and the distinctions between Section 504 and the 
regulations and requirements of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 
(IDEA). 

4. The mediator shall inform all parties involved of the date, time and place of the 
mediation and of the right to have legal counsel or other representation at the 
complainant’s own expense, if desired. 

5. The mediator shall meet with the parties jointly, or separately, as determined by the 
mediator, and shall facilitate a voluntary settlement of the dispute between the parties, if 
possible. 

6. All statements, offers, or discussions and/or information shared during the mediation 
process, but not available from other means, shall be confidential, and may not be used 
in a subsequent hearing or proceeding related to the disagreement that is the subject of 
the mediation. 

7. If the parties are not able to reach a voluntary settlement of the dispute, the complainant 

may request an impartial hearing, as described below. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:

Left + Aligned at:  1.07" + Indent at:  1.57"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.07",  No bullets or

numbering

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:

Left + Aligned at:  1.07" + Indent at:  1.57"

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 4 +

Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:

Left + Aligned at:  1.75" + Indent at:  2"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.07",  No bullets or

numbering

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:

Left + Aligned at:  1.07" + Indent at:  1.57"

Formatted: List Paragraph, Bulleted + Level: 2 +

Aligned at:  1.68" + Indent at:  2.18"

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:

Left + Aligned at:  1.07" + Indent at:  1.57"

Formatted: List Paragraph, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.07

li, Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … +

Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1.07" +

Indent at:  1.57"



 
A. Impartial Hearing Procedures: 

An impartial due process hearing is available to the parent or guardian of a student if the parent or guardian 
disagrees with the decisions made by the professional staff of the school district with respect to the 
identification, evaluation, and/or educational placement of his/her child, or otherwise makes a claim of 
discrimination relating to the identification, evaluation, or educational placement of the student. 
 

1. Upon receipt of a request for an impartial due process hearing, the Board shall retain an 
impartial hearing officer. The impartial hearing officer must be someone who is knowledgeable 
about Section 504, an understanding of a free appropriate public education (“FAPE”) under 
Section 504, and the distinctions between Section 504 and the regulations and requirements of 
the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA). 

2. The impartial hearing office shall schedule a pre-hearing conference with the District and the 
Parent (or his/her legal counsel) to identify the issue(s) for hearing, set the hearing schedule, 
and address other administrative matters related to the hearing, including the option for 
mediation, and the right of the right to have legal counsel or other representation at the 
complainant’s own expense, if desired; 

3. The impartial hearing officer shall inform all parties involved of the date, time and place of the 
hearing and of the right to present witness(es), other evidence, and to have legal counsel or 
other representation at each party’s own expense, if desired. 

4. The impartial hearing officer shall hear all aspects of the complainant’s complaint and/or appeal 
concerning the identification, evaluation and/or educational placement of the student and shall 
reach a decision within forty-five (45) school days of receipt of the request for hearing. The 
decision shall be presented in writing to the complainant and to the Section 504 Coordinator. 

5. An impartial hearing officer under Section 504 does not have jurisdiction to hear claims alleging 
discrimination, harassment or retaliation based on an individual’s disability unless such a claim is 
directly related to a claim regarding the identification, evaluation, or educational placement of a 
student under Section 504. 

6. The time limits noted herein may be extended for good cause shown, including but not limited to 
if more time is needed to permit thorough review, presentation of evidence, and opportunity for 
resolution. 

  
At any time, the complainant has the right to file a formal complaint with the Office for Civil 

Rights: 
Office for Civil Rights 

US Department of Education 
5 Post Office Square 
8th floor, Suite 900 

Boston, MA 02109-3921 
(617) 289-0111—telephone 

(617) 289-0150 — fax 
(877) 521-2172 — TDD 

http://www2 .ed.gov/about/offices/Iist/ocr/complaintintro.html 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Part C: Grievance  
Procedures under Section 504 Procedures for Grievances/Complaints Alleging  

Discrimination on the Basis of Disability 

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +

Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:

Left + Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:

Left + Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", First line:  0"

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Centered

http://www2/


  

A. Any person, including any student, parent/guardian, staff member or other employee 
who wishes to file a complaint about discrimination on the basis of disability may 
submit a written complaint to the district’s designated Section 504 Coordinator within 
thirty (30) school days of the alleged occurrence.  

B. At any time, when complaints involve discrimination that is directly related to a claim regarding 
the identification, evaluation, and/or educational placement of a student under Section 504, the 
complainant may request that the Section 504 Coordinator submit the complaint directly to an 
impartial hearing officer and request a hearing in accordance with the Complaint Resolution 
Procedures for complaints involving a student’s identification, evaluation or educational 
placement, located in Part B of this manual. Complaints regarding a student’s rights with respect 
to his/her identification, evaluation and/or educational placement shall be addressed in 
accordance with the procedures set forth in said Complaint Resolution Procedures located in 
Part B of this manual. 

C. Retaliation against any individual who complains pursuant to the Board’s policy and regulations 
listed herein is strictly prohibited. The district will not tolerate any reprisals or retaliation that 
occur as a result of the good faith reporting or complaint of disability-based discrimination, or as 
a result of an individual’s participation or cooperating in the investigation of a complaint. The 
district will take necessary actions to prevent retaliation as a result of filing a complaint or the 
participation in an investigation of a complaint. 

D. If the Section 504 Coordinator is the subject of the complaint, the complaint should be submitted 
directly to the Superintendent who may conduct the investigation or appoint a designee to 
conduct the investigation in accordance with these procedures. 

E. If the Superintendent is the subject of the complaint, the complaint should be submitted to a 
committee established by the Bridgeport Board of Education.    

F. Complaints will be investigated promptly within timeframes identified below. Timeframes may be 
extended as needed given the complexity of the investigation, availability of individuals with 
relevant information and other extenuating circumstances. Confidentiality will be maintained by 
all persons involved in the investigation to the extent possible. 

G. The complaint should contain the following information: 
o The name of the complainant; 
o The date of the complaint; 
o The date(s) of the alleged discrimination; 
o The names of any witness(es) or individuals relevant the complaint; 
o A detailed statement describing the circumstances in which the alleged discrimination 

occurred; and 
o Remedy requested 
 
  

However, all complaints will be investigated to the extent possible, even if such information is not included in 
the complaint. In such circumstances, additional information may be requested by the investigator as part of the 
investigation process. 
  

H. Upon receipt of the complaint, the individual investigating the complaint shall: 
 
1. Provide a copy of the written complaint to the Superintendent of Schools; 
2. Meet with the complainant within ten (10) school days to discuss the nature of the complaint, 

identify individuals the complainant believes have relevant information, and obtain any relevant 
documents the complainant may have; 

3. Provide the complainant with a copy of the Board’s Section 504 Policy, and these administrative 
regulations; 

4. Conduct an investigation that is adequate, reliable, and impartial. Investigate the factual basis for 

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +

Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:

Left + Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: List Paragraph, Bulleted + Level: 2 +

Aligned at:  0.75" + Indent at:  1"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75"

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +

Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:

Left + Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25"

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:

Left + Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"



the complaint, including conducting interviews with individuals with information and review of 
documents relevant to the complaint; 

5. Maintain confidentiality to the extent practicable throughout the investigative process, in 
accordance with state and federal law; 

6. Communicate the outcome of the investigation in writing to the complainant, and to any 
individual properly identified as a party to the complaint (to the extent permitted by state and 
federal confidentiality requirements), within fifteen (15) school days from the date the complaint 
was received by the Section 504 Coordinator or Superintendent. The investigator may extend 
this deadline for no more than fifteen (15) additional school days if needed to complete the 
investigation. The complainant shall be notified of such extension. The written notice shall 
include a finding whether the complaint was substantiated and if so, shall identify how the district 
will remedy any identified violations of Section 504; 

7. If a complaint is made during summer recess, the complaint will be reviewed and addressed as 
quickly as possible given the availability of staff and/or other individuals who may have 
information relevant to the complaint. If fixed timeframes cannot be met, complainant will receive 
notice and interim measures may be implemented as necessary (see sub paragraph 6); 

8. Ensure that appropriate corrective action is taken whenever allegations are verified. When 
allegations are verified, ensure that compensatory services and/or other measures to remedy the 
effects of the discrimination are appropriately considered, and offered, when appropriate. 
Corrective action should include steps to avoid continuing discrimination. 

9. In the event the investigator concludes that there is no violation of Section 504, the District may 
attempt to resolve the complainant’s ongoing concerns, if possible. 

  
I. If the complainant is not satisfied with the findings and conclusions of the investigation, the 

complainant may present the complaint and written outcome to the Superintendent for review 
and reconsideration within thirty (30) calendar days of receiving the findings. This process 
provides an opportunity for complainants to bring information to the Superintendent’s attention 
that would change the outcome of the investigation. In submitting the complaint and written 
outcome for review, the complainant must explain why he/she believes the factual information 
was incomplete, the analysis of the facts was incorrect, and/or the appropriate legal standard 
was not applied, and how this would change the investigator’s determination in the case. Failure 
to do so may result in the denial of the review. 

  
Upon review of a written request from the complainant, the Superintendent shall review the investigative 
results of the Section 504 Coordinator and determine if further action and/or investigation is warranted. Such 
action may include consultation with the investigator and complainant, a meeting with appropriate individuals 
to attempt to resolve the complaint or a decision affirming or overruling the investigator’s conclusions or 
findings. The Superintendent shall provide written notice to the complainant of his/her decision within ten (10) 
school days following the receipt of the written request for review. 
  

At any time, the complainant has the right to file a formal complaint with the Office for Civil Rights: 

  
Office for Civil Rights 

US Department of Education 
5 Post Office Square 

8th floor, Suite 900 
Boston, MA 02109-3921 

(617) 289-0111—telephone 
(617) 289-0150 — fax 

(877) 521-2172 — TDD 
http://www2.ed .gov/about/offices/Iist/ocr/complaintintro.html 

 

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +

Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:

Left + Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Centered

http://www2.ed/


h 

D. Impartial Hearing Procedures: 

 
1. The impartial hearing officer must be someone who is knowledgeable about Section 504 

and the differences between Section 504 and the regulations and requirements of the 

Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA). 

 
2. The impartial hearing officer shall inform all parties involved of the date, time and place of 

the hearing and of the right to present witness(es) and to have legal counsel or other 

representation at the complainant's own expense , if desired. 
 

3.The impartial hearing officer shall hear all aspects of the complainant's appeal and shall reach a 

decision within forty-five (45) calendar days of receipt of the request for hearing. The 

decision shall be presented in writing to the complainant and to the Section 504 

Coordinator. 

 
4.A Section 504 impartial hearing officer does not have jurisdict ion to hear claims alleging 

discrimination, harassment or retaliation based on an individual's disability unless such a 

claim is directly related to a claim regarding the ident ification, evaluation, or educational 

placement of a student under Section 504. 

 
E. The time limits noted throughout Section II may be extended if more time is needed to permi 

thorough review and opportunity for resolution. 

 
Ill.The Section 504 Coordinator for this district is: 

 

John Di Donato, Assistant Superintendent for Youth Development 948 

Main Street, Administrative Bldg 

Bridgeport, CT 06604 Telephone: 

203-275-1295 

 
IV. Complaints to State and Federal Agencies 

 
At any stage in these complaint procedures, the complainant has the right to file a formal complaint with 

the U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights, 8
1
 Floor, 5 Post Office Square, Suite 900, 

Boston, MA 02109-0111 (TELEPHONE NUMBER (617) 289-0111). Any such complaints must be filed 

within one hundred and eighty (180) days of the date of the alleged violation of Section 504. 

 
Any employee who believes that he or she has been discriminated against on the basis of disability may 

also file a complaint w it h the Connecticut Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities, 1229 A lbany 

Avenue, Hartford, CT 061 12 (TELEPHONE NUMBER 566-7710) and/or the Equal Employment 

Opportunity Commission, Boston Area Office, John F. Kennedy Federal Building, 475 Government 

Center, Boston, MA 02114 (TELEPHONE NUMBER 617-565-3200). Connecticut law requires that a 

formal written complaint be filed with the Commission on Human Rights and 

Opportunities within one hundred and eighty (180) days of the date when the alleged discrimination. 

Remedies for discrimination include cease and desist orders, back pay, compensatory damages, hiring, 

promotion or reinstatement. 



Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 158Page 7 of 9 
 

 
Notice of Parent/Student Rights Under Section 504 Of The Rehabilitation Act Of 1973 

 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (commonly referred to as "Section 504") is a nondiscrimination statute 

enacted by the United States Congress. The purpose of Section 504 is to prohibit discrimination on the basis of 

disability and to assure that disabled students have educational opportunities and benefits equal to those provided 

to nondisabled students. 

 
For the purposes of Section 504, the term "disability'' with respect to an individual means: (a) a physical or mental 

impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities of such individual; (b) a record of such an 

impairment; or (c) being regarded as having such an impairment. "Major life activities" include, but are not limited 

to, caring for oneself, performing manual tasks, seeing, hearing, eating, sleeping, walking, standing, lifting, bending, 

speaking, breathing, learning, reading, concentrating, thinking, communicating and working. A major life activity 

also includes the operation of a major bodily function, including, but not limited to, functions of the immune system, 

normal cell growth, digestive, bowel, bladder, neurological, brain, respiratory, circulatory, endocrine and 

reproductive functions. 

 
Many students will be eligible for educational services under both Section 504 and the Individuals with Disabilities 

Education Act (IDEA), but entitlement to services under the IDEA or other statutes is not required to receive 

services under Section 504. 

 
The fol owing is a description of the rights and options granted by federal law to students with disabilities under 

Section 504. The intent of the law is to keep you fully informed concerning decisions about your child and to inform 

you of your rights if you disagree with any of these decisions. You have the right: 
 

1. To be informed of your rights under Section 504; 

 
2. To have your child take part in and receive benefits from the Bridgeport School District's 

education programs without discrimination based on his/her disability. 

 
3. For your child to have equal opportun'ties to participate in academic, nonacademic and 

extracurricular activities in your school without discrimination based on his/her disability; 

 
4. To be notified with respect to the Section 504 identification, evaluation, and educational 

placement of your child; 

 
5. To have an evaluation, educational recommendation, and placement decision developed by a team 

of persons who are knowledgeable of your child, the assessment data, and any placement options; 

 
6. If your child is eligible for services under Section 504, for your child to receive a free appropriate public 

educat ion. This includes the right to receive reasonable accommodations and services to allow your 

child an equal opportunity to participate in school and school-related  activities; 

 
7. For your child to be educated with peers who do not have disabilities to the maximum extent 

appropriate; 

 
8. To have your child educated in facilities and receive services comparable to those provided to 

non-disabled  students; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0", Tab stops:  6.6", Left



Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 158Page 8 of 9 

 
9. To review all relevant records relating to decisions regarding your child's Section 

504 identification, evaluation, and educational placement; 
 

10. To obtain copies of your child's educational records at a reasonable cost unless the fee 
would effectively deny you access to the records; 

 
11. To request changes in the educational program of your child; 

 

12. To an impartial hearing if you disagree with the school district's decisions regarding your 
child's Section 504 identification, evaluation or educational placement. The costs for this 
hearing are borne by the local school district. You and the student have the right to take part in 
the hearing and to have an attorney represent you at your expense. 

 
13. To file a court action if you are dissatisfied with the impartial hearing officer's decision or 

to request attorney's fees related to securing your child's rights under Section 504. 
 

14. To file a local grievance with the designated Section 504 Coordinator to resolve complaints of 
discrimination other than those involving the identification, evaluation or placement of your 
child. 

 

15. To file a formal complaint with the U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil 

Rights. The Section 504 Coordinator for this district is: 

John Di Donato, Assistant Superintendent for Youth Development 

948 Main Street, Administrative Bldg. 

Bridgeport, CT 06604 

Telephone:  203-275-1295 



81 

h 

Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5158Page 9 of 9 

For additional assistance regarding your rights under Section 504, you may contact: Boston 

Regional Office 

Office for Civil Rights 

U.S. Department of Education 
h  Floor 

5 Post Office Square, Suite 900 

Boston, MA  02109-3921 

Telephone : (617) 289-0111 

 
U.S. Department of Education 

Office for Civil Rights 
550 121

 Street, SW 



Washington, DC 20202- 1100 

Telephone:   1-800-421-3481 

 
Connecticut State Department of Education Bureau 

of Special Education 

and Pupil Services 

 
P.O. Box 2219 Hartford, 

CT 06145 

Telephone:   (860) 807-2030 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Adopted: 

Last Reviewed I Revised: 5/14/12 

Cross Reference: Policy No./Regulation : Related 

Superintendent Procedure: 

Legal Reference: 



Page 1 of 31 
 

 

 
 
 

Bridgeport Public Schools 
 

 
 

SECTION 504 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 31 
 

 
Table of Contents 
Acknowledgements           3 
Introduction            3 

Part A:            4  
Public Notice            
Notice of Non-Discrimination         
District/Building 504 Coordinators/Contacts        

Part B:            5 
District Responsibilities for Students with Disabilities under Section 504    
General Responsibilities          
Criteria for Finding a Student Protected under Section 504      
Child Find Obligations: 504/IDEA Overlaps        

Administrative Procedures  
Referral  
Identification  

Definition of Terms  
Evaluation  
Determining if the student is disabled under 504  
Section 504 Accommodation Plan  
Participation of Related Service Personnel in the 504 Process  
Review of the Student’s Progress  

Additional Considerations for Students with Disabilities under Section 504  
Discipline  
Individual Behavior Management Plans  
Extra-Curricular Activities  
Individualized Health Care Plans  

Procedural Safeguards Under Section 504  
Procedural Safeguards under Section 504  
Compliant Resolution Procedures  

Submission of Complaint to Section 504 Coordinator  
Review by Superintendent of Schools  
Mediation Procedures  
Impartial Hearing Procedures  

Part C:             27 
Grievance Procedures under Section 504  

Appendix A:            30 
Notice of Parent/Student Rights under Section 504  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 31 
 

Acknowledgements 
 
The Bridgeport Board of Education’s Section 504 Manual has been developed to provide educators and 
parents with general information regarding the implementation of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 
1973, 29 USC SS 791, 793-794 (2006), a federal civil rights law, in the Bridgeport Public Schools. 
 
The manual was composed by examining several Section 504 manuals used by other Connecticut School 
Districts and Bridgeport would like to acknowledge the work found in the Trumbull and Darien Board of 
Education Section 504 Manual, which served as a template for the below final product. 
 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
Section 504 provides that, “No otherwise qualified individual with a disability in the United States… shall 
solely by reason of her or his disability, be excluded from the participation in, be denied the benefits of, or 
be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance....” 
 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (“Section 504”) is a federal law designed to protect the rights of 
people with disabilities in programs and activities that receive federal funds from the U.S. Department of 
Education. The Office for Civil Rights (“OCR”), a sub-agency of the U.S. Department of Education, is responsible 
for protecting the civil rights of students in federally assisted education programs and prohibiting 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, disability, age, or membership in patriotic youth 
organizations. 
 
In the setting of a public school, Section 504 applies to the employment of persons with disabilities, access to 
programs and services offered by the District to persons with disabilities, and the provision of a free 
appropriate public education to students with disabilities who attend the Bridgeport Public Schools. The 
regulations implementing Section 504 have a series of requirements for each group of people who are 
protected by Section 504. 
 
This manual is divided into three parts: 
 

 Part A: Board of Education Public Notice, Notice of Nondiscrimination and District/Building 
Coordinators/Contacts; 

 Part B: Procedures utilized by the District to identify, evaluate, and provide services for students who 
meet the criteria of disabled for purposes of Section 504, including information on student and 
educator support services, participation in extracurricular and nonacademic activities for identified 
students, and discipline for identified students; 

 Part C: Grievance procedures for alleging violations of Section 504, unrelated to providing students 
with a free appropriate public education (“FAPE”) under Section 504. 

 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 31 
 

 
Part A 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
The Bridgeport Board of Education shall provide continuing notice to the public and the staff and students that 
it does not discriminate on the basis of disability with regard to admission or access to, or treatment or 
employment in programs and activities of the Bridgeport Board of Education. Continuing notification may 
include the posting of notices, publication in local newspapers, placement of notices in school district 
publications and student/parent handbooks and distribution of memoranda or other written communication. 

 
NOTICE OF NON-DISCRIMINATION 

The Bridgeport Public Schools (the District) is committed to a policy of equal opportunity/affirmative action for 
all qualified persons. The District does not discriminate in any employment practice, education program, or 
educational activity on the basis of race, color, religious creed, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, marital 
status, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, disability (including, but not limited to, intellectual 
disability, past or present history of mental disorder, physical disability, or learning disability), genetic 
information, or any other basis prohibited by Connecticut state and/or federal nondiscrimination laws. The 
District does not unlawfully discriminate in employment and licensing against qualified persons with a prior 
criminal conviction. 
 
Any person having inquiries concerning the District’s compliance with the regulations implementing Section 
504 is directed to contact: Carli Rocha-Reaes, Coordinator of School Counseling, Phone Number: (203) 275-
1287; email: creaes@bridgeportedu.net.  
 
At any time, a complainant has the right to file a formal complaint with: 
 

Office of Civil Rights 
U.S. Department of Education 

5 Post Office Square 
8th Floor, Suite 900 

Boston, MA 02109-3921 
(617) 289-0111—telephone 

(617) 289-0150 — fax 
(877) 521-2172 — TDD 

http://www2.ed. gov/about/offices/list/ocr/complaintintro.html  
 

 
Questions regarding services for students who may be disabled under the provisions of Section 504 may be 
directed to the school where the child/student attends, where the Guidance Counselor is the Principal’s 
designee to oversee Section 504 procedures and act as the Section 504 Coordinator for the building. 
 
Questions for adults with disabilities working for the District or utilizing the buildings programs of the 
Bridgeport Public Schools may be directed to: Ms. Denise Altro-Dixon, Executive Director of Human Resources. 
Phone Number: (203) 275-1355; email: daltrodixon@bridgeportedu.net.  

 
 

mailto:creaes@bridgeportedu.net
mailto:daltrodixon@bridgeportedu.net


Page 5 of 31 
 

Part B 
DISTRICT RESPONSIBILITIES FOR STUDENTS 

WITH DISABILITIES UNDER SECTION 504 
 
General Responsibilities 
No child with a disability can be excluded from any program offered or operated by the Bridgeport Board of 
Education because of his or her disability. To that end, the Bridgeport Public Schools are required by Section 
504 to ensure that the following occurs: 

1. Annually locate and identify all unserved students with disabilities residing in the District; 
2. Provide every student who has a disability, as defined under Section 504, regardless of the nature or 

severity of the disability, with a free appropriate public education (“FAPE”). The provision of FAPE 
under Section 504 means providing regular or special education and related services designed to meet 
the individual education needs of a student with a disability as adequately as the needs of student 
without disabilities are met and that are provided without cost (except for fees imposed on 
nondisabled students/parents); 

3. Educate students with disabilities with non-disabled students to the maximum extent appropriate to 
the needs of the student with a disability; 

4. Establish procedural safeguards to enable parents and guardians to participate meaningfully in 
decisions regarding the evaluation and placement of their children and that allow them to object to 
evaluation and placement decisions regarding their children; 

5. Afford students with disabilities an equal opportunity to participate in nonacademic and 
extracurricular services and activities; 

6. Establish nondiscriminatory evaluation and placement procedures to avoid inappropriate education 
that may result from the misclassification or misplacement of students. 

 
Each school district is responsible for designating a Section 504 Coordinator. The Section 504 
Coordinator for the Bridgeport Public Schools is Mr. Robert E. Arnold, Interim Executive Director of 
Specialized Instruction (see contact information in Part A). 
 

The Section 504 Coordinator is responsible for ensuring that the District: 

 Develops Child Find procedures 

 Provides a free and appropriate public education to each student with a disability regardless of the 
nature or severity of the disability 

 Affords students with disabilities an equal opportunity to participate in nonacademic and 
extracurricular activities 

 Establishes nondiscriminatory evaluation and placement procedures 

 Develops a district wide compliance plan 

 Develops, implements, and disseminates procedural safeguards 

 Locates and appoints building level designees 

 Communicates district wide procedures to staff and parents 

 Develops a system of reviewing 504 plans 

 
Criteria for Finding a Student Protected Under Section 504 
Section 504 covers students with disabilities who attend schools receiving federal financial assistance. To be 
protected under Section 504, a student must be determined to: 

1. Have a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities; 



Page 6 of 31 
 

2. Have a record of such impairment; or 
3. Be regarded as having such impairment. 

 
Section 504 requires that school districts provide a free appropriate public education to qualified students in 
their jurisdiction attending public schools who have a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits 
one or more major life activities. 

 
Child Find Obligations: IDEA/5O4 Overlaps 
 
Public school districts have varied responsibilities to locate, identify, and evaluate students (“Child Find”) who 
may have a disability that would make that student a qualified disabled student under Section 504 or eligible 
for special education under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (“IDEA”). The Child Find obligations 
under Section 504 and IDEA overlap considerably. In addition, because of the broad definition of “disability” 
under Section 504, all students eligible for special education under the IDEA are also qualified students with a 
disability for purposes of Section 504; however not all students with a disability for purposes of Section 504 
are eligible for special education under the IDEA. 
 
Under the IDEA public schools are required to locate, identify, and evaluate all children with disabilities from 
birth through age 21 (with the bulk of the Child Find obligations for children ages Birth to Three falling to the 
state Birth to Three system operated by the Department of Developmental Services). The Child Find mandate 
under the IDEA applies to all children who reside within a state, including children who attend private schools 
and public schools, highly mobile children, migrant children, homeless children, and children who are wards of 
the state. (20 U.S.C. § 1412(a)(3)). In order to be eligible for IDEA services, the student must be found to have 
a disability (or combination of disabilities) defined in the IDEA, the disability must adversely affect the 
student’s educational performance, and because of the disability and the adverse impact on educational 
performance, the student needs specially designed instruction. 
 
Unlike the IDEA, the criteria for finding a student disabled for purposes of Section 504 does not require 
finding that the student’s disability adversely affects the student’s educational performance, nor does it 
require a finding that because of the student’s disability and the adverse impact on educational 
performance, the student needs specially designed instruction. The criteria for meeting the definition of 
“disability” under Section 504 are broader than under the IDEA. This is due to the fact that the purpose of 
Section 504 is to ensure that students with disabilities have access to and can participate in the programs and 
services of the public school and are not discriminated against because of their disability. 
 
Academic and behavioral issues may raise concerns about whether or not a student may have a disability that 
would require a referral to either a 504 team or Planning and Placement Team (PPT) for evaluation. There are 
also other circumstances where a consideration that a student might be identified as disabled under Section 
504 should be raised: 
 

 Recurrent suspensions or an expulsion 

 Absence of student due to serious illness, accident, or hospitalization 

 Return of student after a serious illness, accident, or hospitalization 

 Pattern of not benefiting from instruction 

 Chronic health condition/disease/disability (can be episodic or in remission) 

 High absenteeism 



Page 7 of 31 
 

 Pattern of discipline referrals 

 Suspected drug or alcohol abuse 
 
In addition to school age children who are eligible for special education services under the IDEA, students with 
communicable diseases, attention deficit disorders (ADD/ADHD), behavior disorders, chronic asthma, severe 
allergies, physical disabilities, diabetes, and any other physical or mental impairments that substantially limit 
one or more major or life activities may be students with disabilities protected under Section 504. 
 

*Active drug users are not entitled to any protections under Section 504. However conditions 
of addiction or alcoholism may constitute physical or mental impairments that substantially limit 
one or more life activities. 

 

*It is important to note that a medical diagnosis does not automatically render a student eligible 

under Section 504. Rather medical opinions and diagnoses are just some of the various factors to be 
considered by the Section 504 team in determining whether a student qualifies for protection under 
Section 504. 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES 

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation ACT of 1973 
 
Referral 
Anyone, including, but not limited to all staff members, parents, teachers, or school nurses, can refer a 
student for evaluation to determine if the student has a disability as defined in Section 504. 
 
A 504 Team will be convened to consider the referral. The 504 Team will consider the referral and, based upon 
a review of the student’s existing records, including academic, social, and behavioral records, make a decision 
as to whether an evaluation is required, and will inform the parents or guardian of this decision and of their 
procedural rights. 
 
If the 504 Team has reason to believe the student needs or is believed to need accommodations, 
modifications, or services not available through general education, including special education or related 
services the District must evaluate the student to determine whether the student is disabled as defined by 
Section 504. (See Protecting Students with Disabilities, Frequently Asked Questions About Section 504 and the 
Education of Children with Disabilities, OCR, 12/19/13). 
 
If the 504 Team does not have reason to believe that the student needs accommodations, modifications, 
special education or related services, and refuses to evaluate the student, the District will notify the parents of 
their due process rights. 
 
Parents must be provided with notice of the Section 504 meeting and attempts should be made to convene 
the meeting at a mutually agreeable date and time as parental participation is important in the Section 504 
referral and eligibility process. If a parent does not attend the initial eligibility meeting, the Section 504 
coordinator for the school should ensure that the parents have been given their procedural rights and copies 
of any and all documents reviewed by the Section 504 team or developed at the meeting. 
 



Page 8 of 31 
 

The Section 504 team will be composed of persons knowledgeable about the student, the meaning of 
evaluation data, and the placement options. The Section 504 Coordinator will monitor the composition of the 
Section 504 team to ensure that qualified personnel participate. 
 
Identification 
 
In determining whether a student qualifies under Section 504, the Section 504 team must conduct the 
following inquiry: 
 

Does the student have a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more of such 
student’s major life activities? 
 

The Section 504 team may develop and implement a Section 504 accommodation plan for a student who 
currently has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more of such student’s major life 
activities. A written plan is not required for a student who has a physical or mental impairment that 
substantially limited a major life activity if, for example, the student is using mitigating measures to ameliorate 
the effect of the disability, or if the student’s condition is in remission. A written plan is also not required for a 
student who has a record of such an impairment or is regarded as having such an impairment because the 
impairment is not currently substantially limiting one or more major life activities of the student. These 
students are, however, protected by Section 504 against discrimination. See OCR Memorandum to Senior 
Staff August 13, 1992 (19 IDELR 894). 
 
Definition of Terms 
 

1. Physical or Mental Impairment means (A) any physiological disorder or condition, cosmetic 
disfigurement, or anatomical loss affecting one or more of the following body systems: neurological; 
musculoskeletal; special sense organs; respiratory, including speech organs; cardiovascular; 
reproductive, digestive, genitourinary; hemic and lymphatic; skin; and endocrine; or (B) any mental or 
psychological disorder, such as mental retardation, organic brain syndrome, emotional or mental 
illness, and specific learning disabilities. (Section 504 Regulations at 34 CFR 1 04.3(j)(2)(i)). 
 

2. Substantially Limited is not clearly defined in the law. OCR has declined to define the term but has 
clarified that the determination of “substantial limitation” must be made on a case-by-case basis for 
each individual student. The District is using the definition of “substantially limited” found in the 
regulations developed for the Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”), which was significantly 
amended effective January 1, 2009. “An impairment is a disability [under Section 504] if it substantially 
limits the ability of an individual to perform a major life activity as compared to most people in the 
general population. An impairment need not prevent, or significantly or severely restrict, the individual 
from performing a major life activity in order to be considered substantially limiting. Nonetheless, not 
every impairment will constitute a disability within the meaning of this section.” (See ADA Regulations 
at 29 CFR Section 1630.2(j)(2).) 
 

3. Major Life Activities include, but are not limited to caring for oneself, performing manual tasks, seeing, 
hearing, eating, sleeping, walking, standing, sitting, reaching, lifting, bending, speaking, breathing, 
learning, reading, concentrating, thinking, communicating, interacting with others, and working; and 
the operation of a major bodily function, including functions of the immune system, special sense 
organs and skin; normal cell growth; and digestive, genitourinary, bowel, bladder, neurological, brain, 



Page 9 of 31 
 

respiratory, circulatory, cardiovascular, endocrine, hemic, lymphatic, musculoskeletal, and 
reproductive functions. The operation of a major bodily function includes the operation of an 
individual organ within a body system. 
 

4. When determining whether a student is eligible under Section 504, the Section 504 team may not 
consider the ameliorative effects of mitigating measures. Examples of mitigating measures include: 
medication, medical supplies, appliances, low-vision devices, prosthetics, hearing aids, and mobility 
devices, assistive technology, learned behavioral or adaptive neurological modifications, 
psychotherapy, behavioral therapy, or physical therapy. The use of ordinary eyeglasses or contact 
lenses may be considered in determining whether there is a substantial limitation of a major life 
activity. 

 
5. When determining eligibility for an impairment that is episodic or in remission the team must consider 

whether the impairment would qualify the student as disabled when the impairment is active, i.e., 
whether the impairment substantially limits a major life activity when the student is having an episode. 

 
6. An impairment in and of itself is not a disability. The physical or mental impairment must substantially 

limit one or more life activities in order to be considered a disability under Section 504. 

 
Evaluation 
 

1. If a child needs or is believed to need special education, related services, and/or supplemental aids 
under Section 504, the school district must evaluate the child. 
 

2. Written parent consent is required before conducting an initial evaluation to determine eligibility 
under Section 504. The District also obtains written parent consent prior to conducting a reevaluation 
of the student to determine continued eligibility. 

 
3. The Section 504 evaluation: 

 Should be based on information from a variety of sources: e.g., teacher(s), other school staff 
members, parent/legal guardian, physician, nurse, other professionals, or persons in the 
community; 

 Should document and consider all available pertinent information: e.g., records, assessment data, 
and medical reports related to the suspected physical or mental impairment that may be 
substantially limiting a major life activity; 

 Should be conducted by a team or group of persons including those who are knowledgeable about 
the child, the suspected handicapping condition, evaluation procedures, the meaning of evaluative 
data, and accommodation/placement options; 

 Should use assessment materials, tests, and/or evaluation procedures tailored to assess specific 
areas of educational need, are not racially or culturally discriminatory, and are validated for the 
specific purpose for which they are used. 

 
1. Section 504 evaluation procedures may include: 

 Review of school records 

 Interviews with persons knowledgeable about the child’s functioning 

 Observations in the school, home, or community environments 



Page 10 of 31 
 

 Administration of educational testing, and/or 

 Individual testing measures appropriate for assessing the presenting concern 

 
Determining If the Student Is Disabled under Section 504 
 

 The parent/legal guardian must be invited to participate in every Section 504 meeting, which includes 
the Evaluation Meeting where the results of the evaluation, the determination of disability, and 
possible accommodation/services will be discussed. Every effort should be made to hold this meeting 
at a time when the parent/legal guardian can attend. 

 

 To determine whether the student is disabled as defined under Section 504 during the evaluation 
meeting, the team should consider the following steps: 

 
1. Discuss evaluation material (which may include the following): 

 

 Statements and information from teachers and other school staff members 

 Assessment and/or testing information (e.g., behavioral observations, adaptive behavior, academic 
achievement, and cognitive functioning) 

 Statements and information from health care providers, physicians or other professionals 

 Input from parent/legal guardian and/or persons in the community 

 Teacher log and/or baseline data 

 Progress report (report card) 

 Psychological evaluation 

 Educational records 

 Classroom teacher report 

 Classroom observation 

 Medical evaluation 

 Language assessment 

 Adaptive behavior 

 Discipline record 

 Developmental history 

 Attendance record 

 Social/cultural background Information 

 Intervention strategies 
 

2. Determine whether a physical or mental impairment can be identified 
 

Does the student currently have a mental or physical impairment that can be supported by the 
evaluative data reviewed by the 504 Team? 

 The physical or mental impairment must be recognized in DSM-5 or other respected source if not 
excluded under 504/ADA (e.g. current illegal drug use). 

 
3. Identify the major life activity that is affected by the student’s impairment: 

 
For example, caring for oneself, performing manual tasks, eating, sleeping, standing, lifting, bending, 
reading, concentrating, thinking, communicating, learning, breathing, speaking, seeing, hearing, and 



Page 11 of 31 
 

walking are all examples of major life activities. This list is exemplary and not exhaustive. A major life 
activity also includes the operation of a major bodily function, including but not limited to functions of 
the immune system, normal cell growth, digestive, bowel, bladder, neurological, brain, respiratory, 
circulatory, endocrine, and reproductive functions. 
 

4. Determine whether the impairment or condition substantially limits one or more major life activities 
 
“Substantial” relates to the limitation of a major life activity, not the condition or disability (e.g., a 
substantial limitation to learning). In determining the existence of a physical or mental impairment that 
substantially limits a major life activity, compare the functioning of the student with the impairment to 
the functioning of most students of the same age or grade in the general population. An impairment 
need not prevent, or significantly or severely restrict, the student from performing a major life activity 
in order to be considered substantially limiting. 

 

The determination of whether an impairment substantially limits a major life activity must be made 
without regard to the ameliorative effects of mitigating measures such as medication, medical supplies 
and equipment, prosthetics, hearing aids or cochlear implants, mobility devices, assistive technology, 
reasonable accommodations, auxiliary aids and services, learned behavior or adaptive neurological 
modifications. Mitigating effects of ordinary eyeglasses or contact lenses may be considered in 
determining whether there exists a substantial limitation. Thus, for students who use mitigating 
measures, the Section 504 team must determine whether that student would be substantially limited 
in a major life activity without the use of such measures. If the decision is that the student would be 
substantially limited in a major life activity under those conditions, then the student is eligible under 
Section 504. A written plan is not required for a student who has a physical or mental impairment that 
substantially limited a major life activity if, for example, the student is using mitigating measures to 
ameliorate the effect of the disability. 

 
An impairment that is episodic or in remission is a disability if it would substantially limit a major life 
activity when the impairment is active. 

 
An impairment that substantially limits one major life activity need not limit other major life activities 
in order to be considered a disability. 

 
Close calls concerning whether a student has a disability or a substantial limitation should be resolved 
in favor of finding that the student has a disability and the Section 504 team should then focus on 
determining whether any accommodations or written plan(s) are needed in the school setting as a 
result of that condition. 

 
5. Determine whether the student qualifies as disabled under Section 504 

The student has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life 
activities for that person. 

 
Section 504 Accommodation Plan: 
 
If the student is determined to be disabled under Section 504 and requires accommodations, modifications, or 
services to be provided with free appropriate public education (“FAPE”), the Section 504 team must develop a 
written Section 504 Plan which documents the accommodations and/or services that will be provided in order 



Page 12 of 31 
 

to meet the educational needs of the disabled student. Please note: FAPE under Section 504 does not have the 
same meaning as FAPE under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act. Under Section 504, FAPE means 
providing regular or special education and related services designed to meet the individual education needs of 
a student with a disability as adequately as the needs of students without disabilities are met. 
If the student is determined to be disabled under Section 504, the student must be offered a FAPE. To 
determine if the student has been offered a FAPE, ask the following questions: 
 

1. Is the general education or special education and related aids and services being provided to the 
student designed to meet the individual educational needs of the student as adequately as the needs 
of students without disabilities are met? Another way to think about this is whether the student with a 
disability receives an educational opportunity equal to the educational opportunity afforded to 
students without disabilities. 
 

2. Has the District followed the requirements of Section 504 relating to providing the student with 
services in the least restrictive environment, adhered to the evaluation and placement requirements 
and provided services consistent with the procedural safeguards of Section 504. (See Section 504 
Regulations, 34 CFR 104.33(b)) 

 
The parents or guardian must be invited to participate in all Section 504 meetings, including a Section 504 
team meeting where accommodations, modifications and/or services for the student will be determined. The 
parents must be given an opportunity to examine all relevant records concerning the student. 
 
The Section 504 team will develop a written plan describing the disability and the accommodations and 
modifications needed to provide the student with a FAPE. The plan will specify how the accommodations and 
modifications or services are to be provided and by whom. In developing the plan the Section 504 team shall 
consider all available relevant information, drawing upon a variety of sources, including, but not limited to, 
comprehensive assessments done by the District’s professional staff. 
 
The team may also determine that no accommodations, modifications, or services are appropriate. If so, the 
record of the Section 504 team proceedings will reflect the identification of the student as an individual with a 
disability and will state the basis for the decision that no accommodations, modifications, or services are 
presently needed. It is important to remember that if the student is found to be disabled under Section 504 
but is not provided with services, the student is protected from discrimination by virtue of the fact the student 
has a disability. The Section 504 team should continue to meet annually to review the student’s progress and 
current needs. 
 
A student with a disability shall be placed in the regular education environment with the use of the 
supplementary aids and services, unless the Section 504 team determines that such placement cannot be 
achieved satisfactorily. The student with a disability shall be educated with those who are not disabled to the 
maximum extent appropriate to the individual needs of the student. 
 
Parents shall be provided with the written Section 504 Accommodations Plan developed by the team within a 
reasonable period of time after the Section 504 meeting. Parents shall also be notified of the procedural 
safeguards available to them, including the right to an impartial hearing. 
 



Page 13 of 31 
 

If a plan for providing accommodations, modifications, or services is developed, all school personnel who work 
with the student shall be informed of the plan and a case manager will be assigned to monitor student 
progress. 
 
School district staff, particularly general education staff, must be knowledgeable about Section 504 in view of 
the fact that many services to be provided to students found disabled under Section 504 are the responsibility 
of the general education teacher or services provider. 

 

Participation Of Related Service Personnel In The 504 Process 
 
Before developing a Section 504 plan, the Section 504 Coordinator or the Section 504 Building Coordinator will 
determine the composition of the Section 504 team to ensure that it is made up of qualified personnel. Team 
members should be knowledgeable about the student, understand the meaning of evaluation data, and/or be 
knowledgeable about the placement options available for the student. Team members should participate in 
the evaluation process under Section 504 and, as applicable, the development of a Section 504 
accommodation plan. 
 
The Section 504 team may include related service personnel, a group that includes, but is not limited to, an 
occupational therapist, physical therapist, school nurse, speech and language pathologist, and school 
psychologist or school social worker. A well-developed Section 504 plan provides a blueprint of strategies; 
frames successful implementation of accommodations and modifications in order to provide the student with 
a free appropriate public education. As such, related service personnel should be involved in the development 
of the plan whenever it is appropriate for them to be involved. 
 
Occupational therapy, physical therapy, speech therapy, or school-based counseling services, as related 
services, are quite different from therapies delivered in a hospital or clinic as they are educationally based 
versus medically or clinically based. School based therapists focus on identifying barriers to school 
performance (e.g., physical; emotional; social; and cognitive) and assist students in acquiring the functional 
abilities necessary to access educational materials and the educational environment to participate 
successfully. Collaboration with teachers and with school team members is the foundation for promoting the 
success and participation of students with disabilities in the general education environment. 
 
Many students have conditions or disorders that are not readily apparent to others. Hidden impairments can 
result in ‘substantial limitations,’ which need to be addressed through a Section 504 accommodation plan for 
such students. 
 

Related service personnel can bring expertise and specific knowledge about the student’s disability and 
impairments. Such impairments and disabilities that related service personnel have specific expertise in 
include, but are not limited to: 
 

 Medical and health concerns 

 Orthopedic impairments 

 Neuro-muscular impairments 

 Mental health impairments 

 Specific learning disabilities 

 Visual, speech, or hearing impairments 

 Social and emotional impairments 



Page 14 of 31 
 

 
Related service personnel can and should contribute to the Section 504 team during the identification and 
evaluation process of students, by completing skilled observations/evaluations prior to the initial eligibility 
determination, as well as providing valuable information and insight into the development of a student’s 
Section 504 accommodation plan. Under Section 504, no formalized testing is required. However, related 
service personnel can use various assessment techniques and tools to look at the student’s abilities in the 
natural context of the classroom and school to help determine whether the student is eligible under Section 
504. The focus of assessment by related service personnel will be identifying impairments and determining 
if/how such impairment impacts the student in the educational setting. Prior to any evaluations being done, 
however, parental consent must be obtained in accordance with federal law. 
 
Once it has been determined the student requires a Section 504 Accommodation Plan to receive a free 
appropriate public education, depending upon the student’s specific disability and needs and to the extent 
that it is appropriate, related service personnel should contribute to determining meaningful 
accommodations, modifications and/or services. 
 
It is important to note that the purpose of the accommodations, modifications, and/or services is not to 
‘rehabilitate’ the student with a disability, but to provide interventions designed to meet the student’s 
individual educational needs, just as adequately as the educational needs of their non-disabled peers are met 
in the general education setting. 

 
Review Of The Student’s Progress 
 

The Section 504 team will monitor the progress of the student with a disability and the effectiveness of the 
student’s plan and convene at least once every year. The purpose of this annual meeting is to review the 
Section 504 Accommodation Plan and determine whether accommodations, modifications, and/or services 
are appropriate and necessary, and ensure that the disabled student’s needs are being met as adequately as 
the needs of non-disabled student. 
 

Periodic reevaluation is required by Section 504 regulations. While there is no clear definition of “periodic” 
under the Section 504 regulations, reevaluation in accordance with the IDEA regulations is one means of 
meeting the Section 504 requirement. As such, reevaluations should be conducted at least every three years 
(unless the parent and the Board agree that reevaluation is unnecessary) or more frequently if conditions 
warrant, or if the student’s parent or teacher requests a re-evaluation, but not more than once a year. 
Reevaluation is also required prior to any significant change in placement, which includes but is not limited to 
graduation, disciplinary removal of more than 10 days, and change in educational placement. Please note that 
a reevaluation may, but is not required to, consist of formal standardized testing; it may be sufficient for the 
Section 504 team to ensure that it has updated information regarding the student and review all existing data 
and evaluations to conduct the reevaluation.  
 
Any student who the Section 504 team suspects of having a disability under IDEA will be referred to the 
Planning and Placement Team for consideration of additional evaluation(s) and a determination of eligibility 
for special education services under the IDEA. 

 
 
 



Page 15 of 31 
 

Additional Considerations For Students With Disabilities Under Section 504 
 

I. Discipline 
 
There are specific procedures that must be followed when disciplining a student who is disabled under Section 
504. The District will use the discipline procedures consistent with the IDEA, as appropriate, when disciplining 
students who are disabled under Section 504. To that end, the following information found in the Bridgeport 
Public Schools Code of Conduct, which is applicable to discipline considerations for students who are disabled 
under Section 504, is included in this Section 504 Manual. Where there is reference to the Planning and 
Placement Team (PPT), the Section 504 Team will be substituted; where the term “IEP” is used, “Section 504 
Plan” will be substituted. Other technical modifications were made to ensure relevance to Section 504 
concerns. 

 
Overview 
Students with disabilities, like their nondisabled peers, must abide by the student conduct policies adopted by 
the Bridgeport Board of Education.  
 
Students with disabilities are subject to the full array of disciplinary actions that may be taken against students 
as described in the various policies of the Board of Education, including suspension or expulsion from school. 
The District must follow a set of specific procedural requirements in the event a student with a disability 
engages in a behavior that requires a disciplinary intervention and exclusion from school, which may result in 
a change in the student’s placement. 
 

General Discipline Considerations: Students with Disabilities 
 
“Exclusion” in the Connecticut state statutes is defined as any denial of public school privileges to a student for 
disciplinary purposes. Exclusion from school privileges, or from transportation services only, for less than 10 
consecutive school days, is a suspension. Any exclusion from school privileges for greater than 10 consecutive 
school days is an expulsion. 
 
Connecticut law provides that all suspensions shall be in-school suspensions, unless at the informal hearing 
held prior to the student being suspended: 
 

1. The administration determines that the student being suspended poses such a danger to persons or 
property or such a disruption of the educational process that the student will be excluded from school 
during the period of suspension; or 

 
2. The administration determines that an out-of-school suspension is appropriate for the student based 

on evidence of: 
a. Previous disciplinary problems that have led to suspensions or expulsion of the student; and 
b. An effort by the administration to address such disciplinary problems through means other 

than out-of-school suspension or expulsion, including positive behavioral support strategies. 
 
The District notifies parents, using an effective means, of any exclusion from school privileges exceeding 90 
minutes. Notification will occur within 24 hours of the time the student was excluded. All students who are 
suspended shall be given an opportunity to complete any class work including, but not limited to, 



Page 16 of 31 
 

examinations the student missed during the period of suspension. This includes state assessments. In 
Connecticut, no student may be suspended more than 10 times, or a total of 50 school days in one school 
year, whichever results in fewer days of exclusion, unless they are provided with the opportunity for a formal 
administrative hearing prior to the suspension. If an emergency exists, the hearing is to be held as soon after 
the suspension as possible. 

 
IDEA Discipline Requirements: How Disciplinary Exclusions from School Impact the Provision of 
FAPE to Students with Disabilities: Change in Placement 
 
General Information: The Process 
 
School personnel may remove a student with a disability from school for disciplinary reasons. The student may 
be placed in another setting, or the District may use suspension as a method of discipline for not more than 10 
consecutive school days, to the same extent that those alternatives are applied to students without 
disabilities. 
 
If the District and the parents of a student with a disability who has violated a school code of conduct are 
unable to agree on an appropriate placement, the limitations on the amount of time that student can be 
removed from his/her current placement will be determined as indicated in IDEA and state statutes (see 
Sections 10-233a to 10-233k, inclusive, of the Connecticut General Statutes). 
 
The District may consider any and all “unique circumstances” on a case-by-case basis when considering a 
disciplinary change in placement for the student, consistent with all other state and federal requirements, as 
appropriate for a student with a disability who violates a code of conduct. “Unique circumstances” include 
consideration of factors such as the student’s disciplinary history, ability to understand consequences, 
expression of remorse, and supports provided to a student with a disability prior to violation of the student 
code of conduct (taken from Q&A on Discipline Procedures, OSEP, Revised June 2009, Question B.). 
 
Students with disabilities may be removed for additional days (not more than 10 consecutive school days in 
the same school year for separate incidents or misconduct), as long as those subsequent removals from school 
do not constitute a change in placement. What constitutes a change in placement is discussed in greater detail 
below. 
 
When a student with a disability engages in behavior that results in a disciplinary action being taken by the 
District, one of three scenarios occurs: 
 

1. Removal from school by school personnel for not more than 10 cumulative school days in a school 
year: The student may be removed from school for not more than 10 cumulative school days in a 
school year. If this happens, the student may be disciplined in the same way as students who do not 
have disabilities. No educational services must be provided during the time the student is excluded 
from school, although the student must be permitted to make-up any missed assignments. This 
includes partial day removals from school that when added together equal a full school day and full-
day suspension from school. 
 

2. Current removal from school when added with previous removals is greater than 10 cumulative school 
days in the school year: The student with a disability may have already been removed from school 



Page 17 of 31 
 

during the school year, and this subsequent removal, when added to previous removals is greater than 
10 cumulative school days in a school year. This causes a change in placement that requires certain 
actions be taken by the District to ensure the student receives FAPE during the period of exclusion 
from school.  
 

3. Removal from school for more than 10 consecutive school days: The student with a disability is to be 
removed from school for more than 10 consecutive school days. This causes a change in placement 
that requires that certain actions be taken by the District before the removal occurs and to ensure the 
student receives FAPE during the period of exclusion from school. 

 

Partial Day Exclusions 
It is important to understand that partial day exclusions from school, such as sending the student home for the 
rest of the day, is a suspension from school if the student is excluded from school for more than 90 minutes. 
Partial day exclusions must be tracked to ensure that appropriate procedural safeguards are applied if the 
total amount of time the student is excluded ultimately constitutes a change in placement. 

 
Exclusion from Bus Transportation 
Exclusion from bus transportation is considered a suspension, whether the student receives regular 
transportation or receives transportation as a related service through a Section 504 Plan. The days the student 
is suspended from the bus do not count toward the 10-day total if during this period of bus suspension the 
District provides transportation to the student in some other manner. 
 
Please note: if the student is receiving regular transportation, meaning transportation is not a related service 
listed in the Section 504 Plan, and the student has behavior issues that result in multiple suspensions from bus 
transportation, the Section 504 team should convene to discuss the student’s behavior on the bus and what, if 
any, services the student may need while being transported. 

 
In-School Suspension 
If a student is removed from school to in-school suspension, an in-school suspension is counted toward days 
of suspension if the student is not provided with the opportunity to: (1) continue to appropriately participate 
in the general curriculum, (2) continue to receive the services specified in the student’s Section 504 Plan, and 
(3) continue to participate with nondisabled students to the extent they would have in their current 
placement. 
 
In determining whether the removal of a student with a disability to in-school suspension is counted toward 
days of suspension, districts must examine the setting used and the services provided to students with 
disabilities. Practically speaking, the first two criteria (participation in the general curriculum and receipt of 
services in the Section 504 Plan) can be addressed in in-school suspension. 
 
The third criteria requires that a student with a disability participates with nondisabled students to the extent 
such student would have in his or her current placement. If the student with a disability will not have the same 
level of participation with nondisabled students to the extent they would have in their current placement, the 
time the student spends in in-school suspension will be counted toward days of suspension. Each situation 
must be judged individually. The student’s time is assessed to determine if the time with nondisabled peers 
during periods of in school suspension is comparable to the time the student spends with nondisabled peers 
during a typical school day. 



Page 18 of 31 
 

 
Although the special education office in the federal Department of Education has not provided any definitive 
guidance on this issue, it appears that if a district establishes an in-school suspension setting that is available 
to students with and without disabilities, the time with nondisabled peers criteria is met, even if on any given 
day that student with a disability is the only student placed in the in-school suspension setting. 
 
Please refer to the guidelines published by the CSDE “Guidelines for In-School and Out-of-School 
Suspensions,” Revised December 2010, located on the CSDE website, and particularly Appendix D, Children 
with Disabilities. 

 
Change in Placement 
Disciplinary Removal from School CAUSES a Change in Placement 
 

At the point when a student will be excluded from school for more than 10 (cumulative) school days in a 
school year, a change in placement may occur. If the student is excluded for more than 10 consecutive school 
days, a change in placement does occur. 
 
As defined, a change in placement occurs if: 
 

 The removal is for more than 10 consecutive school days; or 

 The student has been subjected to a series of removals that constitute a pattern because: 
o The series of removals total more than 10 school days in a school year; 
o The student’s behavior is substantially similar to the student’s behavior in previous incidents 

that resulted in the series of removals; and 
o There are additional factors to be considered such as the length of each removal, the total 

amount of time the student has been removed, and the proximity of the removals to one 
another. 

 Please refer back to the notes above on counting partial day removals from school. This 
is critical in determining if a change of placement has occurred with partial day 
removals. 

 
Manifestation Determination: Role of the Section 504 Team, Timeline 
 
If a disciplinary removal may lead to a change in placement, the Section 504 Team convenes before the 
change in placement to conduct a manifestation determination to review the relationship of the student’s 
behavior to the student’s disability. The manifestation determination must be performed within 10 school 
days of any decision to change the placement of a student with a disability. During the period before the 
manifestation determination is complete, the District may remove the student from school through a 
suspension only if such removal does not constitute a change in placement and must provide educational 
services. The Section 504 Team determines the setting and the educational services, so as to enable the 
student to continue to participate in the general education curriculum and to progress toward meeting the 
goals set out in the student’s Section 504 plan. 

 
Section 504 Team Determines The behavior IS a Manifestation of the Student’s Disability 
 
The student’s behavior is a MANIFESTATION of the student’s disability if the Section 504 Team determines: 



Page 19 of 31 
 

1. The conduct in question was caused by, or had a direct and substantial relationship to the student’s 
disability; or 

2. The conduct in question was the direct result of the District’s failure to implement the student’s 
Section 504 Plan. 

 
The Section 504 Team must review all relevant information in the student’s file, including the student’s 
Section 504 plan, any teacher observations, and any relevant information provided by the parents to 
determine if the behavior in question is a manifestation of the student’s disability. 
 
If the Section 504 Team determines the student’s conduct is a manifestation of the student’s disability: 

1. The 504 Team must conduct a functional behavioral assessment (FBA) unless a FBA was conducted 
before the behavior that resulted in the change of placement occurred; 

2. The 504 Team must design and implement a behavioral intervention plan (BIP) if one has not already 
been implemented. If a BIP has been developed, it must be reviewed and modified as necessary to 
address the behavior; and 

3. The student must be returned to the placement from which the student was removed unless the 
parent and the District agree to a change in placement as part of the modification of the BIP. 

 
If the 504 Team determines the student’s conduct IS NOT a manifestation of the student’s 
disability: 
 

1. The student may be disciplined in the same manner and for the same duration as a student without a 
disability; 

2. The student continues to receive educational services that enable the student to continue to 
participate in the general education curriculum, although in another setting (i.e., the alternative 
education opportunity described in Section 10-233 d of the general statutes), and to progress toward 
meeting the goals set out in the student’s Section 504 Plan; and 

3. The 504 Team may determine it is appropriate to conduct a functional behavioral assessment (FBA) 
and develop a behavioral intervention plan/services (BIP) and modifications to behavioral goals and 
objectives in the Section 504 Plan designed to address the behavior violation so that it does not recur. 

 
Due to the specific requirements of the state expulsion statutes, educational services may or may not be 
required during the period of expulsion depending on the age of the student, whether or not it is the student’s 
first expulsion, and what the violation is. Bridgeport’s code of student conduct explains in detail the provision 
of services during periods of expulsion. However, the state expulsion statute is clear that the exceptions to 
providing an alternative educational opportunity to students who are expelled do not apply to students 
eligible for special education who are expelled. 
 
Homebound instruction may not be used as the sole option for providing the alternative educational 
opportunity: one hour of instruction a day for GRADES K-6 and two hours a day for GRADES 7-12 may not be 
sufficient to meet the criteria of #2 above. The 504 Team must determine on an individual basis the amount of 
instructional time to be provided to a student with a disability to ensure the services being offered to the 
student meets the criteria of #2 above. 
 



Page 20 of 31 
 

Whenever the District is considering a removal that constitutes a change in placement, the District must notify 
the parents not later than the date on which the change of placement is made and provide the parents with a 
copy of the procedural safeguards notice. 

 
Disciplinary Removal from School DOES NOT CAUSE a Change in Placement 
 

1. If the removal from school does not meet the criteria for a change in placement, a manifestation 
determination is not required and the student may be disciplined in the same manner as students 
without disabilities. 

2. If the current removal from school is not more than 10 school days, school personnel in consultation 
with at least one of the student’s teachers determines the extent to which educational services are 
needed to enable the student to continue to participate in the general education curriculum, although 
in another setting, and to progress toward meeting the goals in the IEP. 

3. The student shall also receive, if the Section 504 team determines it to be appropriate, a functional 
behavioral assessment (FBA) and behavioral intervention plan/services (BIP) designed to address the 
behavior violation so that it does not recur. 

 
If the District and the parents of a student with a disability who has violated a school code of conduct are 
unable to agree on an appropriate placement, the limitations on the amount of time student can be removed 
from his/her current placement will be determined as indicated in IDEA and state statutes (see Sections 10-23 
3a to 10-233k, inclusive, of the Connecticut General Statutes). 
 
The District may consider any and all “unique circumstances” on a case-by-case basis when considering a 
disciplinary change in placement for the student, consistent with all other state and federal requirements, as 
appropriate for a student with a disability who violates a code of conduct. “Unique circumstances” include 
consideration of factors such as the student’s disciplinary history, ability to understand consequences, 
expression of remorse, and supports provided to a student with a disability prior to violation of the student 
code of conduct (taken from Q&A on Discipline Procedures, OSEP, Revised June 2009, Question B-2). 
 

Referral to and Action by Law Enforcement & Judicial Authorities 
 
Section 504 does not prevent the District from reporting crimes committed by students with disabilities to 
appropriate authorities and does not prevent state law enforcement and judicial authorities from exercising 
their responsibilities under Federal and state law to crimes committed by a student with a disability. The 
District must treat the reporting of the crime of a student with a disability and the transmission of information 
regarding that student in the same fashion it would a nondisabled student. 

 
Behavior in the Community 
 
Students may be suspended or expelled for behavior occurring in the community in accordance with the 
provisions of the general statutes. (Refer to Sections 10-23 3c(a) and Section 10- 233d(a)(l) of The Connecticut 
General Statutes.) 
 
In order to suspend a student for behavior occurring in the community, the District administration must 
determine the conduct off school grounds violates a publicized policy of the Board of Education and is 
seriously disruptive of the educational process. In order to expel a student for behavior occurring in the 



Page 21 of 31 
 

community, the Board of Education, or a designee of the Board, through a formal administrative hearing, must 
determine the conduct off school grounds violates a publicized policy of the Board and is seriously disruptive 
of the educational process. 
 
To find that the behavior is seriously disruptive of the educational process, the District administration or Board 
of Education or designee will review factors related to the behavior, including but not limited to whether: 
 

 The behavior happened close to school; 

 Other students from school were involved or there was any gang involvement; 

 The conduct involved violence, threats of violence, or the unlawful use of a weapon; 

 Any injuries occurred; and 

 The conduct involved the use of alcohol. 
 

II. Individual Behavior Management/Intervention Plans: 
 
For a student with disabilities whose behavioral difficulties significantly interfere with his or her ability to 
benefit for his or her education, OCR has interpreted Section 504 as requiring districts to develop an 
individualized behavior management/intervention plan for the student. 
 
The purpose of the behavioral management/intervention plan is to maintain the placement that the student’s 
Section 504 team has determined to be appropriate to meet his or her educational needs in the least 
restrictive environment. If a student has an individual behavior management/intervention plan, district staff 
must make sure that the student is being disciplined in accordance with his or her plan. All school officials, 
administrators, and staff need to be aware of what is in the student’s behavior plan and the plan must be 
followed. 
 

III. Extra-Curricular Activities 
 
Students with disabilities must be provided with an equal opportunity to participate in extracurricular and 
nonacademic activities and programs. Reasonable accommodations that are necessary to ensure that an 
otherwise qualified student is provided an equal opportunity to participate in the District’s extracurricular 
programs, including athletic programs, will be provided to students with disabilities. Provided such reasonable 
accommodations do not fundamentally alter the program. 
 
All decisions regarding what constitutes reasonable accommodations made to a program will be determined 
on an individual inquiry. While the reasonable accommodations need not be determined by the Section 504 
team, relevant individuals to include in the accommodations discussion are, as appropriate, the student, 
parent, coach, advisor, administrator, and teacher. The District will also consider whether safe participation by 
a student with a disability can be assured through the provision of aids and services to provide the student 
with disabilities the same opportunity to participate in the program as his or her non-disabled peers. 
 
The District may require a specific level of skill or ability for participation in a competitive program or activity 
such as specific athletic sports. OCR has provided guidance that equal opportunity does not mean, for 
example, that every student with a disability is guaranteed a spot on an athletic team for which the other 
students must try out. The District will ensure it provides nonacademic services and activities in such a manner 
that is necessary to provide students with a disability with an equal opportunity for participation in such 
extracurricular activities and services. 



Page 22 of 31 
 

 
OCR has provided extensive guidance regarding extracurricular activities in its January 2013 
Dear Colleague Letter, located at http:/www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/letters/colleague 
201301-504.pdf. 

 
IV. Individualized Health Care Plans 

 
Under Connecticut State Law (see Section 10-21 2c) the District must develop and implement an individualized 
health care plan and food allergy action plan for every student with a life threatening food allergy, and an 
individualized health care plan and glycogen storage disease action plan for every student with glycogen 
storage disease, irrespective of whether the student meets the definition of disability for purposes of Section 
504 or the IDEA. Further, other students with other medical issues may have individualized health care plans 
for a variety of reasons, including but not limited to managing and planning for emergency medical situations 
and medication needs. 
 
A student with a medical or health concern may, but is not always, a student with a disability for purposes of 
Section 504. Eligibility and need for accommodations of students with medical or health concerns, including 
life-threatening food allergies and glycogen storage disease, shall be determined on an individual basis 
through the Section 504 process if a referral for such student is appropriate. 

 
Procedural Safeguards Under Section 504 
Parents and guardians are afforded procedural safeguards under Section 504. Appendix A contains the 
statement of parental rights, which includes, among other rights, the right of the parent/guardian to be 
informed of their rights under Section 504; the right for the student to have equal opportunities to participate 
in academic, nonacademic, and extracurricular activities in the school; and the right to be notified about 
referral, evaluation, and programs for the student. The District is also required to provide public notice of its 
policies of nondiscrimination, grievance procedures for Section 504 complaints, and the contact information 
for the District coordinator of Section 504 compliance. This information is contained in Part A and Part C of 
this Section 504 Manual. 
 
Complaint Resolution Procedures For Complaints Involving A Student’s Identification, Evaluation, 
and/or Educational Placement 
 
Complaints regarding a student’s identification, evaluation, and/or educational placement shall generally be 
handled using the procedures described below. 

 
However, at any time, the complainant may request that the Section 504 Coordinator submit the 
complaint directly to an impartial hearing officer, and request a hearing in accordance with the 
provisions of subsection D (below). 
 

The District 504 Coordinator is: 
Ms. Carli Rocha-Reaes, Coordinator of School Counseling  

Bridgeport Public Schools 
45 Lyon Terrace, Rm. #330 

Bridgeport, CT 06604 
Phone: 203-275-1287 

Fax: 203-337-0153 



Page 23 of 31 
 

 

A. Submission of Complaint to Section 504 Coordinator 
a. In order to facilitate the prompt investigation of complaints, any complaint regarding a 

student’s identification, evaluation and/or educational placement under Section 504 should be 
forwarded to the district’s Section 504 Coordinator within thirty (30) school days of the alleged 
date that the dispute regarding the student’s identification, evaluation and/or education 
placement arose. Timely reporting of complaints facilitates the resolution of potential 
educational disputes. 
 

B. The complaint concerning a student’s identification, evaluation and/or educational placement should 
contain the following information: 

a. Full name of the student, age, and grade level; 
b. Name of parent(s); 
c. Address and relevant contact information for parent/complainant; 
d. Date of complaint; 
e. Specific areas of disagreement relating to the student’s identification, evaluation and/or 

placement; and 
f. Remedy requested. 

 
However, all complaints will be investigated to the extent possible even if such information is not included 
in the complaint. In such circumstances, additional information may be requested by the investigator as 
part of the investigation process. 
 

C. Complaints will be investigated promptly within timeframes identified below. Timeframes may be 
extended as needed given the complexity of the investigation, availability of individuals with relevant 
information and other extenuating circumstances. 

D. Upon receipt of the complaint, the Section 504 Coordinator shall: 
a. Forward a copy of the complaint to the Superintendent of Schools; 
b. Meet with the complainant within ten (10) school days to discuss the nature of his/her 

concerns and determine if an appropriate resolution can be reached. If a complaint is made 
during summer recess, the complaint will be reviewed and addressed as quickly as possible 
given the availability of staff and other individuals who may have information relevant to the 
complaint; 

c. If, following such a meeting, further investigation is deemed necessary, the Section 504 
Coordinator shall promptly investigate the factual basis for the complaint, consulting with any 
individuals reasonably believed to have relevant information, including the student and/or 
complainant; and 

d. Communicate the results of his/her investigation in writing to the complainant and any persons 
named as parties to the complaint (to the extent permitted by state and federal confidentiality 
requirements) within fifteen (15) school days from the date the complaint was received by the 
Section 504 Coordinator. 

e. In the event that the person making the complaint contends that the Section 504 Coordinator 
has a conflict of interest that prevents him/her from serving in this role, the complaint shall be 
forwarded to the Superintendent who shall appoint an investigator who does not have a 
conflict of interest. 

 
 



Page 24 of 31 
 

1. Review by Superintendent of Schools 
a. If the complainant is not satisfied with the findings and/or resolution offered as a result of the 

Section 504 Coordinator’s review, he or she may present the complaint and the written 
statement of findings to the Superintendent for review and reconsideration within thirty (30) 
calendar days of receiving the findings. This process provides an opportunity for complainants 
to bring information to the Superintendent’s attention that would change the outcome of the 
investigation. In submitting the complaint and written outcome for review, the complainant 
must explain why he/she believes the factual information was incomplete, the analysis of the 
facts was incorrect, and/or the appropriate legal standard was not applied, and how this would 
change the investigator’s determination in the case. Failure to do so may result in the denial of 
the review. 

2. The Superintendent shall review the complaint and any relevant documents maintained by the Section 
504 Coordinator/investigator and shall consult with the Section 504 Coordinator/investigator regarding 
attempts to resolve the complaint. The Superintendent also shall consult with the complainant. The 
Superintendent may attempt to resolve the complainant’s concerns alone, or with another appropriate 
administrator. 

3. Following the Superintendent’s review, he or she shall communicate his/her findings to the 
complainant within ten (10) school days following his/her receipt of the written request for review. 

4. If the complainant is not satisfied with the Superintendent’s decision or proposed resolution, he/she 
may request that the Superintendent submit the matter to a neutral mediator or to an impartial 
hearing officer. This request for a hearing/mediation should be made within fifteen (15) school days of 
the Superintendent’s decision. Mediation shall only occur by mutual agreement of the parties. 

 
Mediation Procedures: 
 
A parent or guardian may request mediation with a neutral mediator to attempt to resolve a disagreement 
with the decisions made by the professional staff of the school district with respect to the identification, 
evaluation, and/or educational placement of his/her child. 
 

1. A request for mediation regarding a student’s identification, evaluation and/ or educational placement 
under Section 504 should be forwarded to the district’s Section 504 Coordinator within thirty (30) 
school days of the alleged date that the dispute regarding the student’s identification, evaluation, 
and/or education placement arose. 
 

2. The request for mediation concerning a disagreement relating to a student’s identification, evaluation 
and/or educational placement should contain the following information: 

a. Full name of the student, age, and grade level; 
b. Name of parent(s); 
c. Address and relevant contact information for parent/complainant; 
d. Date of complaint; 
e. Specific areas of disagreement relating to the student’s identification, evaluation and/or 

placement; and 
f. Remedy requested. 

 
3. Upon receipt of a request for mediation, the Section 504 Coordinator shall: 

a. Forward a copy of the request for mediation to the Superintendent of Schools; 



Page 25 of 31 
 

b. Retain a neutral mediator who is knowledgeable about the requirements of Section 504, and 
has an understanding of a free appropriate public education (“FAPE”) under Section 504, and 
the distinctions between Section 504 and the regulations and requirements of the Individuals 
with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA). 

4. The mediator shall inform all parties involved of the date, time and place of the mediation and of the 
right to have legal counsel or other representation at the complainant’s own expense, if desired. 

5. The mediator shall meet with the parties jointly, or separately, as determined by the mediator, and 
shall facilitate a voluntary settlement of the dispute between the parties, if possible. 

6. All statements, offers, or discussions and/or information shared during the mediation process, but not 
available from other means, shall be confidential, and may not be used in a subsequent hearing or 
proceeding related to the disagreement that is the subject of the mediation. 

7. If the parties are not able to reach a voluntary settlement of the dispute, the complainant may request 
an impartial hearing, as described below. 
 

A. Impartial Hearing Procedures: 
An impartial due process hearing is available to the parent or guardian of a student if the parent or 
guardian disagrees with the decisions made by the professional staff of the school district with respect 
to the identification, evaluation, and/or educational placement of his/her child, or otherwise makes a 
claim of discrimination relating to the identification, evaluation, or educational placement of the 
student. 
1. Upon receipt of a request for an impartial due process hearing, the Board shall retain an impartial 

hearing officer. The impartial hearing officer must be someone who is knowledgeable about 
Section 504, an understanding of a free appropriate public education (“FAPE”) under Section 504, 
and the distinctions between Section 504 and the regulations and requirements of the Individuals 
with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA). 

2. The impartial hearing office shall schedule a pre-hearing conference with the District and the 
Parent (or his/her legal counsel) to identify the issue(s) for hearing, set the hearing schedule, and 
address other administrative matters related to the hearing, including the option for mediation, 
and the right of the right to have legal counsel or other representation at the complainant’s own 
expense, if desired; 

3. The impartial hearing officer shall inform all parties involved of the date, time and place of the 
hearing and of the right to present witness(es), other evidence, and to have legal counsel or other 
representation at each party’s own expense, if desired. 

4. The impartial hearing officer shall hear all aspects of the complainant’s complaint and/or appeal 
concerning the identification, evaluation and/or educational placement of the student and shall 
reach a decision within forty-five (45) school days of receipt of the request for hearing. The decision 
shall be presented in writing to the complainant and to the Section 504 Coordinator. 

5. An impartial hearing officer under Section 504 does not have jurisdiction to hear claims alleging 
discrimination, harassment or retaliation based on an individual’s disability unless such a claim is 
directly related to a claim regarding the identification, evaluation, or educational placement of a 
student under Section 504. 

6. The time limits noted herein may be extended for good cause shown, including but not limited to if 
more time is needed to permit thorough review, presentation of evidence, and opportunity for 
resolution. 

 
At any time, the complainant has the right to file a formal complaint with the Office for Civil 
Rights: 



Page 26 of 31 
 

Office for Civil Rights 
US Department of Education 

5 Post Office Square 
8th floor, Suite 900 

Boston, MA 02109-3921 
(617) 289-0111—telephone 

(617) 289-0150 — fax 
(877) 521-2172 — TDD 

http://www2 .ed.gov/about/offices/Iist/ocr/complaintintro.html 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 27 of 31 
 

Part C: Grievance  
Procedures under Section 504 Procedures for Grievances/Complaints Alleging  

Discrimination on the Basis of Disability 
 

A. Any person, including any student, parent/guardian, staff member or other employee who wishes to 
file a complaint about discrimination on the basis of disability may submit a written complaint to the 
district’s designated Section 504 Coordinator within thirty (30) school days of the alleged occurrence.  

B. At any time, when complaints involve discrimination that is directly related to a claim regarding the 
identification, evaluation, and/or educational placement of a student under Section 504, the 
complainant may request that the Section 504 Coordinator submit the complaint directly to an 
impartial hearing officer and request a hearing in accordance with the Complaint Resolution 
Procedures for complaints involving a student’s identification, evaluation or educational placement, 
located in Part B of this manual. Complaints regarding a student’s rights with respect to his/her 
identification, evaluation and/or educational placement shall be addressed in accordance with the 
procedures set forth in said Complaint Resolution Procedures located in Part B of this manual. 

C. Retaliation against any individual who complains pursuant to the Board’s policy and regulations listed 
herein is strictly prohibited. The district will not tolerate any reprisals or retaliation that occur as a 
result of the good faith reporting or complaint of disability-based discrimination, or as a result of an 
individual’s participation or cooperating in the investigation of a complaint. The district will take 
necessary actions to prevent retaliation as a result of filing a complaint or the participation in an 
investigation of a complaint. 

D. If the Section 504 Coordinator is the subject of the complaint, the complaint should be submitted 
directly to the Superintendent who may conduct the investigation or appoint a designee to conduct 
the investigation in accordance with these procedures. 

E. If the Superintendent is the subject of the complaint, the complaint should be submitted to a 
committee established by the Bridgeport Board of Education.    

F. Complaints will be investigated promptly within timeframes identified below. Timeframes may be 
extended as needed given the complexity of the investigation, availability of individuals with relevant 
information and other extenuating circumstances. Confidentiality will be maintained by all persons 
involved in the investigation to the extent possible. 

G. The complaint should contain the following information: 

 The name of the complainant; 

 The date of the complaint; 

 The date(s) of the alleged discrimination; 

 The names of any witness(es) or individuals relevant the complaint; 

 A detailed statement describing the circumstances in which the alleged discrimination occurred; 
and 

 Remedy requested. 
 
However, all complaints will be investigated to the extent possible, even if such information is not included in 
the complaint. In such circumstances, additional information may be requested by the investigator as part of 
the investigation process. 
 

H. Upon receipt of the complaint, the individual investigating the complaint shall: 
1. Provide a copy of the written complaint to the Superintendent of Schools; 



Page 28 of 31 
 

2. Meet with the complainant within ten (10) school days to discuss the nature of the complaint, 
identify individuals the complainant believes have relevant information, and obtain any relevant 
documents the complainant may have; 

3. Provide the complainant with a copy of the Board’s Section 504 Policy, and these administrative 
regulations; 

4. Conduct an investigation that is adequate, reliable, and impartial. Investigate the factual basis for 
the complaint, including conducting interviews with individuals with information and review of 
documents relevant to the complaint; 

5. Maintain confidentiality to the extent practicable throughout the investigative process, in 
accordance with state and federal law; 

6. Communicate the outcome of the investigation in writing to the complainant, and to any individual 
properly identified as a party to the complaint (to the extent permitted by state and federal 
confidentiality requirements), within fifteen (15) school days from the date the complaint was 
received by the Section 504 Coordinator or Superintendent. The investigator may extend this 
deadline for no more than fifteen (15) additional school days if needed to complete the 
investigation. The complainant shall be notified of such extension. The written notice shall include 
a finding whether the complaint was substantiated and if so, shall identify how the district will 
remedy any identified violations of Section 504; 

7. If a complaint is made during summer recess, the complaint will be reviewed and addressed as 
quickly as possible given the availability of staff and/or other individuals who may have information 
relevant to the complaint. If fixed timeframes cannot be met, complainant will receive notice and 
interim measures may be implemented as necessary (see sub paragraph 6); 

8. Ensure that appropriate corrective action is taken whenever allegations are verified. When 
allegations are verified, ensure that compensatory services and/or other measures to remedy the 
effects of the discrimination are appropriately considered, and offered, when appropriate. 
Corrective action should include steps to avoid continuing discrimination. 

9. In the event the investigator concludes that there is no violation of Section 504, the District may 
attempt to resolve the complainant’s ongoing concerns, if possible. 

 
I. If the complainant is not satisfied with the findings and conclusions of the investigation, the 

complainant may present the complaint and written outcome to the Superintendent for review and 
reconsideration within thirty (30) calendar days of receiving the findings. This process provides an 
opportunity for complainants to bring information to the Superintendent’s attention that would 
change the outcome of the investigation. In submitting the complaint and written outcome for review, 
the complainant must explain why he/she believes the factual information was incomplete, the 
analysis of the facts was incorrect, and/or the appropriate legal standard was not applied, and how this 
would change the investigator’s determination in the case. Failure to do so may result in the denial of 
the review. 

 
Upon review of a written request from the complainant, the Superintendent shall review the 
investigative results of the Section 504 Coordinator and determine if further action and/or 
investigation is warranted. Such action may include consultation with the investigator and 
complainant, a meeting with appropriate individuals to attempt to resolve the complaint or a decision 
affirming or overruling the investigator’s conclusions or findings. The Superintendent shall provide 
written notice to the complainant of his/her decision within ten (10) school days following the receipt 
of the written request for review. 

 



Page 29 of 31 
 

At any time, the complainant has the right to file a formal complaint with the Office for Civil Rights: 
 

Office for Civil Rights 
US Department of Education 

5 Post Office Square 
8th floor, Suite 900 

Boston, MA 02109-3921 
(617) 289-0111—telephone 

(617) 289-0150 — fax 
(877) 521-2172 — TDD 

http://www2.ed .gov/about/offices/Iist/ocr/complaintintro.html 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



Page 30 of 31 
 

APPENDIX A 
District Section 504 Forms 

 

BRIDGEPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
NOTICE OF PARENT/STUDENT RIGHTS 

UNDER SECTION 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973 
 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (commonly referred to as “Section 504”) is a non-discrimination 
statute enacted by the United States Congress. Section 504 prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability. 
Under Section 504, the school district also has specific responsibilities to identify, evaluate and provide an 
educational placement for students who are determined to have a physical or mental impairment that 
substantially limits a major life activity. The school district’s obligation includes providing such eligible students 
a free appropriate public education (“FAPE”). Section 504 defines FAPE as the provision of regular or special 
education and related services that are designed to meet the individual educational needs of a student with a 
disability as adequately as the needs of students without disabilities are met, and that are provided without 
cost (except for fees imposed on nondisabled students/parents). 
 
A student is covered under Section 504 if it is determined that he/she suffers from a mental or physical 
disability that substantially limits one or more major life activity such as (but not limited to) caring for oneself, 
performing manual tasks, seeing, hearing, eating, sleeping, walking, standing, lifting, bending, speaking, 
breathing, learning, reading, concentrating, thinking, communicating and working. A major life activity may 
also include the operation of a major bodily function, such as an individual’s immune, digestive, respiratory or 
circulatory systems. 
 
A student can be disabled and be covered by Section 504 even if he/she does not qualify for, or receive, 
special education services under the IDEA. 
 
The purpose of this notice is to provide parents/guardians and students with information regarding their rights 
under Section 504. Under Section 504, you have the right: 

1. To be informed of your rights under Section 504; 
2. To have your child take part in and receive benefits from the Bridgeport School District’s education 

programs without discrimination based on his/her disability. 
3. For your child to have equal opportunities to participate in academic, nonacademic and extracurricular 

activities in your school without discrimination based on his/her disability; 
4. To be notified of decisions and the basis for decisions regarding the identification, evaluation, and 

educational placement of your child under Section 504; 
5. If you suspect your child may have a disability, to request an evaluation, at no expense to you, to have 

an eligibility determination under Section 504, and if eligible, placement decisions made by a team of 
persons who are knowledgeable of your child, the assessment data, and any placement options; 

6. If your child is eligible for services under Section 504, for your child to receive a free appropriate public 
education (FAPE). This includes the right to receive regular or special education and related services 
that are designed to meet the individual needs of your child as adequately as the needs of students 
without disabilities are met. 

7. If your child is eligible for services under Section 504, for your child to receive reasonable 
accommodations and services to allow your child an equal opportunity to participate in school, extra-
curricular and school-related activities; 



Page 31 of 31 
 

8. For your child to be educated with peers who do not have disabilities to the maximum extent 
appropriate; 

9. To have your child educated in facilities and receive services comparable to those provided to non-
disabled students; 

10. To review all relevant records relating to decisions regarding your child’s Section 504 identification, 
evaluation, and educational placement; 

11. To examine or obtain copies of your child’s educational records at a reasonable cost unless the fee 
would effectively deny you access to the records; 

12. To request changes in the educational program of your child, to have your request and related 
information considered by the team, a decision made by the team, and if denied, an explanation for 
the team’s decision/determination; 

13. To an impartial due process hearing if you disagree with the school district’s decisions regarding your 
child’s Section 504 identification, evaluation or educational placement. The costs for this hearing are 
borne by the local school district. You and the student have the right to take part in the hearing and to 
have an attorney represent you at your expense. 

14. To file a local grievance/complaint with the district’s designated Section 504 Coordinator to resolve 
complaints of discrimination including, but not limited to claims of discrimination directly related to 
the identification, evaluation or placement of your child. 

15. To file a formal complaint with the U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights. 
 

The District 504 Coordinator is: 
Ms. Carli Rocha-Reaes, Coordinator of School Counseling  

Bridgeport Public Schools 
45 Lyon Terrace, Rm. #307 

Bridgeport, CT 06604 
Phone: 203-275-1287 

Fax: 203-337-0153 
 

For additional assistance regarding your rights under Section 504, you may contact: 
 

Boston Regional Office 
Office for Civil Rights 

U.S. Department of Education 
8th Floor 

5 Post Office Square, Suite 900 
Boston, MA 02109-3921 Telephone: (617) 289-0111 

 
Connecticut State Department of Education 

Bureau of Special Education and Pupil Services 
P.O. Box 2219 

Hartford, CT 06145 Telephone: (860) 807-2030 
 



BRIDGEPORT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 

 

 
        CONTROLLED TRANSFER POLICY 

It is the policy of the Bridgeport Board of Education that students shall attend schools based upon geographic district lines.  
Exceptions to this policy are permitted under the Controlled Transfer Policy, which permits transfers to other schools 
within Bridgeport. TRANSPORTATION WILL NOT BE PROVIDED FOR CONTROLLED TRANSFERS. 
 

A. The procedure for applying for a Controlled Transfer is as follows: 
1. Applicants may pick up an application, as well as a policy statement, at the Office of Student Choice  

www.bridgeportedu.com click PARENT tab followed by SCHOOL CHOICE 
2. The application must be filled out and returned to Office of Student Choice, Room 302, City Hall 45 Lyon 

Terrace, Bridgeport, and Ct 06604. 
3. The application will be reviewed and a decision will be made in writing to the applicant. 
4. A copy of the application and the approval or denial letter will be kept on file in the Office of Student Choice. 
5. This policy does not apply to BPS Magnet Schools. 

 
B.  A Controlled Transfer will be granted under the following conditions: 

1. A Controlled Transfer may be granted into classrooms where the current enrollment in grades K and one (1) 
is less than 23, in grades 2 through 8 with enrollments less than 28 students. In grades 9- 12, a controlled 
transfer application may be granted on a case by case basis by Central Office administration.   

C. Procedure for revoking a Controlled Transfer: 
1. Controlled Transfer applicants will be informed, in writing, that the Controlled Transfer will be revoked at any 

time for the following reasons: 
• Violation of the Code of Conduct Attendance policy or a Type 3 Code of Conduct Disciplinary Offense 
• The letter informing the parent of the controlled transfer revocation will reference the Code of 

Conduct disciplinary violation and include a copy from the Code of Conduct 
• After the completion marking period 2, any controlled transfer that is revoked will not take effect until 

the beginning of the next school year 
• If the student does not meet the terms of the Controlled Transfer for discipline, attendance and/or 

tardiness the following procedure is implemented: 
o The principal will contact the parent/guardian in writing to warn that the student could have 

his/her Controlled Transfer revoked according to the provisions outlined in the letter granting 
the Controlled Transfer. A copy of the letter will be sent to the Office of Student Choice - 
letter #1.  

o If the student continues to violate the Controlled Transfer Policy, a second letter will be sent 
to the parent/guardian. A copy of the letter will be sent to the Office of Student Choice - 
letter # 2. 

o Upon the third violation of the Controlled Transfer Policy, the Office of Student Choice will 
confer with the appropriate assistant superintendent and make a determination as to 
whether the Controlled Transfer should be revoked. 

o Should the request for revocation be approved, the Office of Student Choice will notify the 
principal of the Controlled Transfer assigned school and the new district school of the 
decision to revoke the Controlled Transfer and to assign the student to the new district 
school. A third and final letter will be sent to the parent/guardian from the Office of Student 
Choice revoking the controlled transfer. 

o Until the student has reported to the district school, the principal from the Controlled 
Transfer assigned school assists in the transfer to the new district school. This may entail 
phone calls, home visits or referrals to the appropriate agencies. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Policy # 5116a 

http://www.bridgeportedu.com/


 
D. Appeal Process  

• If the applicant disagrees with the decision, they will have 15 business days from receipt of the decision to 
appeal.  

• The Controlled Transfer will remain in effect during the appeal process for a revocation  
• Lack of space at the Controlled Transfer assigned school will be cause for immediate revocation, even 

while pending the outcome of an appeal.  

E. Procedure for appeals is as follows: 
a. Applicant must, in writing, request that the Office of Student Choice have an Assistant Superintendent of 

Schools review the application. 

b. The Assistant Superintendent will review each appeal application and render a decision in writing to the 
applicant within ten (10) business days. 

c. If the applicant is still not satisfied with the Assistant Superintendent’s decision, the applicant can request, in 
writing, that the Superintendent of Schools review the decision. 

d. The Superintendent will review each appeal application submitted to them from the Assistant Superintendent 
and render a decision in writing to the applicant within fifteen (15) business days. 

e. If the applicant is still not satisfied with the Superintendent’s decision, the applicant can request, in writing, a 
meeting with the Board of Education. 

f. The Board of Education will schedule a meeting with the applicant and review their application. A final 
decision on the appeal will be rendered by the Board of Education within ten (10) business days after the 
meeting 

g. Should the appeal process timelines not be followed by the administration, the appeal will be upheld. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BOE Approved December 2017  
 
 


	Students_5000-Series Control Transfer Policy 5116A.pdf
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No. 5 112 Page 2 of 2
	Enrollment
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 113 Page 2 of 5
	Definitions
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 113 Page 3 of 5
	High School Summer School Program
	Request for early dismissal

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5113 Page 4 of 5
	Suspended Students
	Class Cutting
	Tardiness
	Tardy to School

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 113 Page 5 of 5 Tardy to Class

	Daily procedures for taking attendance
	For Students with Truancy Issues
	SAMPLE NOTIFICATION REGARDING STUDENT ATTENDANCE
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 113R Page 4 of 4
	FORM PARENT/GUARDIAN CONTACT INFORMATION
	Magnet/Choice Options

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 116(a) Page 2 of 2

	Entrance Requirements for Eighth Grade Students to Central Magnet
	Applicants must meet the following criteria to qualify for the lottery drawing:
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5116(c) Page 2 of 2

	Entrance Requirements for Elementary Magnet Students
	Requirements for Continuing Enrollment in Elementary Magnet Programs
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5116 (d) Page 2 of 2
	lnterdistrict Discovery Magnet School
	Appeal Process:

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No. 5116(g) Page 2 of 2
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No. 5 116. 1 Page 2 of 3
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No. 5 116. 1 Page 3 of 3
	PROOF OF RESIDENCE FORM
	Student: ______________________________________________  I.D._____________
	(Print)
	Parent / Guardian: ______________________________________            Date: ___________
	(Print)
	Address: ______________________________________________            Zip: ____________
	(Print)
	Phone: ________________     ____________________     ___________________________
	(Home)                                (Work)                             (Emergency)
	Resident Students
	Non-Resident Students

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5117 Page 2 of 2
	Upon the suspicion of non-residency, an investigation may include:


	I. Definitions
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No. 5124(a) Page 2 of 2

	Ill. Procedures
	IV. Confidentiality of Education Records
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No. 5121(d) Page 2 of 2
	VI. The Release of Records or Personal Data
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 124(e) Page 2 of 3
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 124(e) Page 3 of 3

	VII. Amendment of Student Records

	VIII. Hearing Rights and Procedures
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No. 5124(g) Page 2 of 2

	IX. Waiver of Rights
	X. Special Confidentiality Procedures for HIV - Related Information
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No. 5 124(i) Page 2 of 3
	XI. Child Abuse Reporting
	XII. Right to File a Complaint
	Responsibility for Maintenance of Student Records
	Category "B" Records
	6. Records containing information pertaining to child abuse/neglect referrals or reports, or containing confidential HIV-related information should be kept separate from the student's cumulative folder in confidential files.
	Category "C" Records - Special Education
	Record
	Responsibility for Maintenance of Student Records




	Actions Leading To Disciplinary Action, Including Suspension and/or Expulsion
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 131 Page 2 of 9
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 131 Page 3 of 9
	Procedures for Expulsion Hearings Conducted By the Board of Education

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 131 Page 4 of 9
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5131 Page 5 of 9
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 131 Page 6 of 9
	Procedures Concerning Special Needs Students (IDEA)

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 131 Page 7 of 9
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 131 Page 8 of 9
	Notification to Parents or Guardian

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 13 1 Page 9 of 9
	Early Readmission
	Dissemination of Policy
	Conduct of Athletes

	Conduct of Participants in Other Extra-Curricular Activities
	Middle and High School Students
	Elementary School Students


	Vandalism by Minors
	Vandalism by an Adult Student
	Smoking and Other Tobacco Use and Possession
	Statement
	Definitions
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5137 Page 2 of 2
	Consequences for the Use, Sale, Distribution or Possession of Controlled Drugs, Controlled Substances or Alcohol:

	II. Statement of Policy/Definition
	Mandatory School Uniform for Bridgeport School Students, Grades PK-8

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5140 Page 2 of 4
	Mandatory School Uniform for Bridgeport School Students, High School Grades
	Exceptions for Designated Days or Events
	Compliance
	Clothing and Items Prohibited for All Grades.
	Accommodation of Protected Expression
	Disruptive
	Religious and Health Accommodations
	Procedures for Exemption

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5140 Page 4 of 4
	Clothing Assistance
	2a. Parental Responsibility
	2b. Staff Responsibility

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 142 Page 2 of 4
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5142 Page 3 of 4
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No. 5 142 Page 4 of 4
	Safe School Climate Plan

	I. Prohibition Against Bullying and Retaliation
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 142R Page 2 of 11
	Ill. Other Definitions
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 142R Page 3 of 11

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 142R Page 4 of 11
	B. Safe School Climate Specialist
	V. School-Based Safe School Climate Plan
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5142R Page 5 of 11
	VI. Procedures for Reporting and Investigating Complaints of Bullying

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 142R Page 6 of 11
	VII. Responding to Verified Acts of Bullying
	E. Notice to Law Enforcement

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 142R Page 7 of 1 1
	VIII. Documentation and Maintenance of Log
	IX. Other Prevention and Intervention Strategies

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 142R Page 8 of 11
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5142R Page 9 of 11
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 142R Page 10 of 11
	X. Improving School Climate
	XI. Annual Notice and Training
	XII. School Climate Assessments
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 142R
	Page 11 of 11
	Suggested SAT Procedures

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No. 5150 Page 2 of 3
	Guidelines for an Initial Faculty Meeting

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5150 Page 3 of 3
	1. Review the day, get feedback from staff.
	Health Records
	Regular Health Assessments

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No. 5 151 Page 2 of 5
	Vision Screening
	Hearing Screening

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.515 1 Page 3 of 5
	Postural Screening
	Tuberculin Testing
	Immunizations / Vaccinations

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No. 515 1 Page 4 of 5
	Health Assessments/Interscholastic Sports Programs
	Student Medical Care at School

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.515 1
	Page 5 of 5
	Definitions

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 152 Page 2 of 16
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 152 Page 3 of 16
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 152 Page 4 of 16
	Administration of Medications

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5152 Page 5 of 16
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 152 Page 6 of 16
	Training of School Personnel

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 152 Page 7 of 16
	Self-administration of Medications

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 152 Page 8 of 16
	Handling, Storage and Disposal of Medications

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 152 Page 9 of 16
	Documentation and Record Keeping

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 152 Page 10 of 16
	D. Errors in the administration of medication

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 152 Page 11 of 16
	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5152 Page 12 of 16
	Administration of Medication by Coaches and Licensed Athletic Trainers During Intramural and Interscholastic Events

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 152 Page 13 of 16
	Administration of Medication by Paraprofessionals Pursuant To Section 10-212a-(D) Of the Connecticut General Statues.
	Administration of Medication in School Readiness Programs and Before- And After-School Programs.

	Bridgeport Public Schools Policy No.5 152 Page 16 of 16
	Medication Emergency Procedures



	Control_Transfer_Policy_11-8-18_5116A-v2.pdf
	CONTROLLED TRANSFER POLICY





